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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

AEERNREERY
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

AEERNEERY

Principal Place of Business
24th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates

Annual Results Announcement 11 December 2018
Book Close Dates for Final Dividend 11 and 12 February 2019
Record Date for Final Dividend 12 February 2019
Annual General Meeting 30 January 2019
Payment Date of Final Dividend 28 February 2019

(HKO.64 cent per share)

Corporate Communications
This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is

available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In
order to protect the environment, the Company highly recommends
the Shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual
Report. Shareholders may have the right to change their choice
of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at any time by
reasonable notice in writing to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by email at
is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY

RAEBE

For the year ended
30 September

BE9H30BLEE
2018 2017 Changes
HK$'000 HK$’000 )
FET FET
Total revenue FEUE N 1,241,000 +5.9%
Financing BX 837,521 +29.7%
Brokerage & 132,961 +0.7%
Placing & Underwriting [T=EERO) 203,708 -62.7%
Corporate Finance PERE 66,810 -72.1%
Net profit Fary
Per reported BHE 659,185 -16.7%
Adjusted’ PR 662,686 +13.9%
Earnings per share BRAH
9.96;& 11l
Basic HAK HK9.96 cents -18.2%
2.9078 1
Total dividends per share IR B B%E HK2.90 cents -1.7%
' Excluding aggregate impairment allowances on accounts '  #ik& & #£49205,600,000/% T (20174 :

3,500,000/ 7T ) Z FEW R AN E SRR #5002
AR GREE) -

receivable and, loans and advances, net of reversal, totalling
approximately HK$205.6 million (2017: HK$3.5 million).

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWETT

Established in 1993, Emperor Capital Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) is one of the renowned Hong Kong based
financial institutions providing a wide range of financial
services including (i) commercial and personal lending as
well as margin and initial public offering (“IPO”) financing;
(ii) brokerage, wealth management and asset management;
(iii) placing and underwriting services for listed issuers; and
(iv) corporate finance advisory services. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since April 2007.

Over the past decade, the Group has made great strides in
transforming to an interest income based financial institution.
The core strength of the Group lies in its robust business
model, with diverse income streams to withstand increasingly
complex market conditions. Being recognised by the capital
market for its solid performance, the Group has become one
of the constituent stocks of MSCI HK Small Cap Index, since
1 December 2015. The Group currently operates 6 branches
in Hong Kong, and 3 liaison offices in mainland China.

B ———————< \\\| (]
The Listing Anniversary Dinner of Emperor Capital Group, April 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmE DT

Market Review

During the year ended 30 September 2018 (the “Year”), the
global economic conditions appeared to have moderated,
with diverging growth prospects across advanced economies
and emerging markets. In the United States (the “US”),
optimism remained robust as the tax cuts and deregulation
efforts of the new white house had boosted corporate
profitability and investments. The strong economy and rising
inflationary pressure had prompted the US Federal Reserve
(“Fed”) to accelerate the pace of interest rate hikes. US stock
market has continued to outperform those of other countries.
The Fed’s rate hikes, along with the geopolitical risks, have
triggered currencies crisis in some emerging markets.
In China, the pace of expansion was hindered by credit
strains due to an ongoing deleveraging drive, as well as the
intensifying Sino-US trade conflict. After a booming 2017,
stocks market in Hong Kong has turned sour amidst global
uncertainties. During the Year, the Hang Seng Index slipped
a slight 1.3% and closed at 27,816 on 28 September 2018.

Financial Review
Overall Review

During the Year, the Group’s revenue registered growth of
5.9% to approximately HK$1,314.3 million (2017: HK$1,241.0
million), mainly driven by growth of financing segment. Profit
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company (“Net
Profit”) decreased to approximately HK$549.2 million (2017:
HK$659.2 million) as a result of the impairment allowances
on accounts receivable and, loans and advances, net of
reversal (“Impairment Allowances”) recognised. Excluding
the Impairment Allowances, the Group’s adjusted Net Profit
delivered a growth of 13.9% to approximately HK$754.8
million (2017: HK$662.7 million), with adjusted Net Profit
margin of 57.4% (2017. 53.4%). Basic earnings per share
were HK8.15 cents (2017: HK9.96 cents). The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board” or the “Directors”)
recommended payment of a final dividend of HK0.64 cent
per share (2017: HK1.52 cents). Together with the interim
dividend of HK2.21 cents per share, the total dividends per
share for the Year will amount to HK2.85 cents (2017: HK2.90
cents).

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEFR AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmEDT

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations by cash mainly generated
from operations and borrowings, as well as proceeds
raised from issuance of bonds. As at 30 September 2018,
the Group’s current assets and current liabilities were
approximately HK$10,470.3 million (as at 30 September
2017: HK$9,318.4 million) and HK$3,524.6 million (as at
30 September 2017: HK$2,793.1 million), respectively. As
at 30 September 2018, aggregate of bank balances, cash
and pledged bank deposits of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,043.0 million (as at 30 September 2017:
HK$674.1 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”").

During the Year, the Company completed the placing of
bonds in aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,200.0
million. These bonds comprised of the followings:

—  Principal amount of HK$800.0 million, which was placed
and issued in four tranches during the Year. The interest
rate of the HK$ bonds is 5.0% per annum, payable
annually in arrears. The maturity date of these bonds will
be on the third anniversary of their date of issue.

BEXEE REBETRHUBKELER
REBTENLLEER BELETE
FMEGSHNREBEREERRHES - K
2018F9QH30H ' "EBE 2 REBEE MK
FHEaED R4 A10,470,300,0005 7T (A
201749 H30H : 9,318,400,000/% 7T) &
3,524,600,000/% 7T (7A20179F9A30H :
2,793,100,000/ L) » 201849 A30
H AEBZRITEH Be e BEH
IR1ITIERA H4)/51,043,000,00078 7T (A
201799 A30H : 674,100,000/ 7T) * *£
BB TTEE ©

RAFE KRR ETKREEEENE
1,200,000,0008 T2 E5 - ZEEBEHB
LA :

— X4 %8800,000,0005 7T M AN FE
DKPTUHERE R B1T - BILEHF
FEE5.0%  BREBFHRIN - %
EEHFZHPRAERTHPZE=R

Ms. Daisy Yeung, CEO of the Group, was granted with “Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur
Excellence Award” by Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur Association, November 2017

AEBITRABBRS LIRS EAZLECERHERESEANLEEREBIEALANE - 2017511 4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmE DT

- Principal amount of approximately HK$400.0 million,
comprising of HK$390.5 million HK$ bonds and US$1.2
million United States dollars (“US$”) bonds (equivalent
to approximately HK$9.4 million), which was placed and
issued in four tranches during the Year. The interest rate
of the HK$ bonds is 5.0% per annum whilst the interest
rate of the US$ bonds is 4.75% per annum, payable
annually in arrears. The maturity date of these bonds will
be on the third anniversary of their date of issue.

The net proceeds from the above bond placements
will be applied as working capital for expansion of the
Group’s existing businesses, especially for the money
lending business, and to finance any future opportunities
the Company may identify, and repayment of loans and
borrowings.

As at 30 September 2018, the total carrying amount of
the Company’s outstanding bonds was approximately
HK$2,785.0 million (as at 30 September 2017: HK$1,589.1
million). Principal amounts of HK$ bonds and US$ bonds
were approximately HK$2,711.7 million and US$11.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$87.6 million) respectively.
With maturity dates fall within 2019 and 2021, the HK$ bonds
carry coupon rates ranging between 5.0% and 5.25% per
annum whilst the US$ bonds carry coupon rates between
4.5% and 4.75% per annum.

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Group has entered
into a placing agreement for placing the bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$500.0 million on
or before 31 January 2019, which is 3-year unsecured
bonds denominated in HKS$, bearing interest at 5.25% per
annum payable annually in arrears. As of 7 December 2018,
principal amount of approximately HK$252.8 million was
placed and issued in 2 tranches.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWETT

As at 30 September 2018, short-term bank borrowings of the
Group increased to approximately HK$460.2 million (as at 30
September 2017: HK$328.5 million). These bank borrowings
were secured by corporate guarantees from the Company,
of which none (as at 30 September 2017: HK$315.0 million)
was further secured by pledged bank deposits of the Group.
These bank borrowings were denominated in HK$ and
carried interest rates approximating market rates. Together
with the bonds, the total borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$3,245.3 million (as at 30 September
2017: HK$1,917.6 million), resulting in an increase of gearing
ratio to 59.7% (as at 30 September 2017: 37.4%; calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over total equity of
the Group). The Group did not have any material foreign
exchange exposure as at 30 September 2018.

With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, its
available unutilised banking facilities of HK$2,279.0 million,
as well as the proceeds raised from the issuance of bonds,
the Board considers the Group has sufficient working capital
for its operation and future development.

g W

21 Tl B

R2018%F9A30H « A&EB 2 s HIR 1T &
X AN = 49460,200,00058 7T (7220174
9H30H : 328,500,000/ 7T) ° :% F iR 1T
BERHAARREHEEERER  MEFIL
28 (7201799 H308 : 315,000, ooo,%
TL) AASEEBEEEE 2 RITF RUIRHE
R - ZFRITHERABTAE - EF
KETIGFERBE - ERBBEES A%
B 2 EE 4% A3,245,300,0007 7T (R
201749 H30H : 1,917,600,000/%& 7T) -
FREFZAERIEINES.7% (FR201749
HA30H : 37.4% : L ANEBEERTE N
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Awarded “Hong Kong Leaders’ Choice - Excellent Brand of Financial Instituting Services” by Metro Finance, February 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmE DT

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2018, bank deposit of the Group with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$160.0 million (as at 30
September 2017: HK$160.0 million) was pledged to a bank
as security for banking facilities.

Business Review

Facing the complex market conditions, the Group strived
to take effective measures to manage various risks and
actively expanded financing segment, while maintaining its
core competitiveness in the industry. The sustained growth
has reflected the Group’s proven success in prioritising the
financing segment, hence solidifying its position as a leading
financial services provider.

Financing

The Group’s financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and
IPO financing. The loans granted to customers range from
short-term unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term
loan, personal loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property
mortgage). Built on a renowned reputation for delivering
professional and personalised loan services, the Group has
developed a niche in the loan market, providing corporate
and retail clients with tailored liquidity solutions to meet their
corporate goals and personal needs.

During the Year, the Group continued to solidify its customer
base by enhancing marketing capabilities and optimising
loan service processes. The Group actively expanded the
property mortgage business and maintained a strong market
position. While driving business volume, the Group also
focused on reinforcing risk management, strengthening
capital management, and ensuring an optimised scale of
its loan book. Revenue from the financing segment grew by
29.7% to approximately HK$1,085.9 million (2017: HK$837.5
million), accounting for 82.6% (2017: 67.5%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

Brokerage

The Group currently provides brokerage services for
securities, futures and options traded on exchanges in
Hong Kong, mainland China (via Shanghai-Hong Kong and
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect schemes respectively)
and major overseas countries, as well as wealth management
and asset management services.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmEDT

Despite of the intensified competition from new players, the
Group managed to retain customer loyalty through delivering
service excellence. As a result, revenue from the brokerage
segment slightly increased to approximately HK$133.8 million
(2017: HK$133.0 million). The segment accounted for 10.2%
(2017: 10.7%) of total revenue.

During the Year, the Group continued to strengthen its
brokerage operations by implementing a customer-centered
approach, improving online trading platforms and expanding
product offerings. As at 30 September 2018, the Group
operated 6 branches in Hong Kong, covering key commercial
and popular residential areas with convenient pedestrian
access. The Group also runs 3 liaison offices, in Beijing,
Shanghai and Guangzhou.

The Group continued to expand its product offerings on a
timely basis in response to changes in a dynamic financial
market. Since the launch of the Shanghai-Hong Kong and
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect schemes in recent
years, the Group has included Northbound trading services,
enabling investors to trade eligible stocks listed in Shanghai
Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The
introduction of Northbound trading services has facilitated
investors’ accessibility to the mainland China market, thereby
enriching their investment opportunities.

The Group’s wealth management division provides advices
regarding a wide array of investment services, including
securities, mutual funds, insurance-linked products, and
real estate investment. In its asset management arm,
apart from running private equity fund, the Group also
provides customised discretionary investment services to its
customers.

Placing and Underwriting

With a highly experienced team of professionals, the Group
offers placing and underwriting services, and acts as placing
agents and underwriters for various Hong Kong listed
companies.

BiEsHLEE<SHEFMNE > REEDK
NEBRBEEBRY KHMRFEFA
BIE o AL - &40 SRR A BRI AN 4
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(20174 : 10.7%) ©

RAFE  NEBEBRUNR BN FE
RABLEXSFEIBBRERMES Bt
B DR S 40 ¥ 75 - 1R2018F9A308 -
REBREELE BT URATRS
Emﬁ%&&%WME%E KNEE TR
BEZEABEANER DU AIER - £F
KB o

AEBERERSEEN M IZEEER
BEEERAS -BEBBIFERTE
PORFRBNANR - AREBEREILRR S
fR7 - BREERPEEN LEIHFRS
kAN BSRZ G Tz aBBKRE -
ﬁﬁx%%%%%kﬁ%&ﬁ%?ﬁﬁm
Mm% WMESEZHNREKS

REBzUEERIHBSZRRERS

(BREES HAE2 REREHBEDA
&%ﬂ?&ﬁ)hfﬂuﬁ FEEEEE
BF - ARERTEELEREESIN
NEEXFRHEFIENEEZTRE
AR 75 ©

B & 5 & g

BHRABEELRNEXER  AKES
ZEBRB LT ARREESE MEHERBEAL
BEERERERBHER -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA A

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %R

11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmE DT

During the Year, the Group secured a number of primary
and secondary market financing projects. Revenue from
the placing and underwriting segment was approximately
HK$75.9 million (2017: HK$203.7 million), accounting for
5.8% (2017: 16.4%) of total revenue. The Group served
as placing agents in equity and debt placing deals and
IPO-related transactions. The Group also participated in
underwriting rights issue exercises.

During the Year, the Group acted as one of the Joint
Sponsors, Sole Bookrunner and Lead Manager in the IPO of
Ulferts International Limited, which was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in January 2018. The Group
also acted as one of the Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead
Managers in the IPO of Grace Wine Holdings Limited, which
was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange in June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmEDT

Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance licence under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor
work for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance
advisory services. Apart from IPO-related services, the Group
offers advisory services for corporate transactions including
placing, rights issue, corporate restructuring and merger and
acquisition.

The Group has engaged in a number of corporate
transactions and IPO projects during the Year. Revenue from
the corporate finance segment was approximately HK$18.6
million (2017: HK$66.8 million), accounting for 1.4% (2017:
5.4%) of total revenue.

Outlook

Sino-US tension and monetary policies of major central banks
are set to overshadow the global economic outlook in the
near term. The sentiments on monetary and capital market
have become more cautious. It is expected that banks may
adjust their loans and property mortgages arrangements
accordingly. Against this backdrop, the Group will adjust its
strategy in a timely manner in response to market demand
and strengthen its property mortgage business which has a
unique market positioning. It will also focus on expanding its
personal loan business to meet the market demand for loans
with higher flexibility.

The Group will press ahead with its growth strategies by
exploring new opportunities spanning various loan products.
Meanwhile, the Group strives to improve risk management
capacity and collateral monitoring system, so as to ensure a
sound credit-management process, thereby achieving stable
returns amid an unstable market environment.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 30 September 2018, the Group had 98 (2017: 114)
account executives and 191 employees (2017: 183).
Total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) were
approximately HK$121.6 million (2017: HK$111.9 million).
Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To continue to provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme during the
Year which replaced the share option scheme expired in
September 2017, particulars of which are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEkEREEECEE

DAISY YEUNG
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

B
TRAARETRLE

Daisy Yeung, aged 53, joined the Group in January 1996.
She is the Managing Director of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the Chairperson
of the Executive Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company, including Emperor Securities Limited,
Emperor Futures Limited, Emperor Wealth Management
Limited and Emperor Asset Management Limited, all of
which she is also a responsible officer under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. Moreover, she is now the Chairman
of The Institute of Securities Dealers Limited and a General
Committee member of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies. Ms. Yeung is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy, overseeing operations and the overall
steering of the Company’s management focusing in the
areas of marketing and business development. She has
accumulated over 22 years of management experience
in financial industry and has been active in driving the
development of the local securities industry. Ms. Yeung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Business Administration.

ol
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESEkEREEECEE

CHAN SHEK WAH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

BR 85 %
BITES

CHOI SUK HING, LOUISA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

R
BTESRLAME

PEARL CHAN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

BR i i
BITES

Chan Shek Wah, aged 55, joined the Board in
December 2011. He is the Executive Director of
the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee as well as a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also the
Managing Director and responsible officer of
Emperor Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. He has over 31 years of professional
experience in the financial industry. He has
been engaged in the sales, proprietary trading,
structuring of equity derivatives and equity
capital market products as well as the provision
of corporate finance advisory services to listed
issuers. Before joining the Group, he was the
senior management and an executive director in
several international financial institutions.

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa, aged 54, joined the
Board in March 2008. She is an Executive
Director and the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Choi is the Chairperson of the
Corporate Governance Committee and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and a responsible officer of
Emperor Capital Limited under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Ms. Choi has over 20 years
of experience in the finance industry covering
securities, futures and corporate finance. Before
that, she had worked in the company secretary
profession in both listed companies as well as
professional firms for over 8 years. Ms. Choi
holds a Master’'s Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia. She is a fellow
member and Chartered Governance Professional
of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Pearl Chan, aged 45, joined the Board in June
2011. She is an Executive Director and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company.
She is also a director and responsible officer of
Emperor Capital Limited under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. She has been working in the
corporate finance field for more than 17 years.
She was a practising lawyer in Hong Kong before
joining the Group. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws from The University of Hong
Kong and a Master’s Degree in Management from
Macquarie University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chu Kar Wing, aged 61, joined the Board in May 2010.
He is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is also an
independent non-executive director of another Hong Kong
listed company, China Power Clean Energy Development
Company Limited (Stock Code: 735). He has extensive
experience in the banking and finance sector for several
well-known corporations. Moreover, he is now the President
of Canada-China Culture and Education Association. Mr. Chu
holds a Bachelor's Degree of Social Sciences majoring in
Economics.

Poon Yan Wai, aged 48, joined the Board in January 2014.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. He is now the
financial controller, company secretary and an authorised
representative of a Hong Kong listed company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of a Hong Kong listed
company, Dragon Mining Limited (Stock Code: 1712). He
was previously an independent non-executive director of
another Hong Kong listed company, China Brilliant Global
Limited (formally known as Prosten Health Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 8026) until 12 February 2018. He has over 20
years of experience in the auditing and accounting field.
Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy and a
Master’'s Degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Wan Choi Ha, aged 51, joined the Board in July 2015. She
is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well
as a member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Ms. Wan has been
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong since 1993 and is now
a Partner of Wan and Leung, Solicitors. Ms. Wan graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree
in Laws.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are engaged in the provision
of financial services including (i) commercial and personal
lending as well as margin and IPO financing; (ii) brokerage,
wealth management and asset management; (iii) placing and
underwriting services for listed issuers; and (iv) corporate
finance advisory services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 60.

An interim dividend of HK2.21 cents per share for the Year
(2017: HK1.38 cents per share) amounting to approximately
HK$148.97 million (2017: HK$93.02 million) was paid to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) during the
Year.

The Directors recommended payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.64 cent per share (2017: HK1.52 cents per share)
for the Year, amounting to approximately HK$43.1 million
(2017: HK$102.5 million) to those Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on 12 February 2019
(Tuesday), subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 30 January
2019 (Wednesday) (“2019 AGM”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group’s
business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 5 to 13 of this annual report. Description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 47
to 50 and note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this
report.
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In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s key stakeholders, the Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have significant impact on
the Company are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2017/2018 of the Company.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 63.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 30 September 2018 represented the
aggregate of contributed surplus (stated as “special reserve”
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statement) and
retained profits amounting to HK$101.9 million and HK$50.3
million respectively (2017: HK$101.9 million and HK86.4
million).

The special reserve of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
of the subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of
a subsidiary pursuant to the group reorganisation on 2 April
2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the Shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment
at a cost of approximately HK$4,146,000.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DEBENTURE

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of
unsecured bonds are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 24% (2017. 29%) of the Group’s total turnover. The largest
customer accounted for 10% (2017: 9%) of the Group’s total
turnover.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of
principal activities of the Group.

BE -LEIAEEARQFAZLD
& 35

MARFEER - KD A RELFNBER AR
i%ﬁ‘ﬁ%i%@$ﬂﬁZEﬂiﬁ%

BEABERE

AREZ R EERMA K E S EED R
BRI AR 2 R) BRI 113 A PR 3R 3 4 T R
2 BEBEERE -

IR 3E #8910 =

BRI AR A B TS 3R M R 203 BR 0 BB AR A 5t
ZI5h - BB AR B RANEFFE R ML FRA
FERNFENREE B

MERRE
RAFER  NEBEEAYENREZK
KA A4,146,000/ TT °

AEBMEREB 2 EBFBIANEEY
BRI FET5

B
BRAARRERRES 2 BEEIFHAN
REMBHRRME2T

FEEFRMER

MAEER  AEBRARAREFAHEEMRY
EEREMAEEREETE24% (20174F -
29%) c AR AEE L EETEI0%
(20174 : 9%) »

BMEARNREFTNWETABEALHIE
MR (MEFZFAEAARFS TR
RBiB5%) N ARBEAREPHEAEMN

B -

AERAKEZEBZXHME  AEELE
TEHER -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %R

19



20

_ _ F/N BN

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgRE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Shek Wah

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa

Ms. Pearl Chan

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Kar Wing
Mr. Poon Yan Wai
Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Biographical details of the Directors and senior managers as
at the date of this report are set out from pages 14 to 16 of
this annual report. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Daisy Yeung, Ms. Choi Suk Hing,
Louisa and Mr. Chu Kar Wing shall retire by rotation at the
2019 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election
at the 2019 AGM has an unexpired service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business were entered into or
existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the
directors and officers liability insurance maintained for the
Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against the
Directors and the directors of the Group.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZFSZEBEFREAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

ol

EERESEZRBELN

AR
T

HITES !
BT LT (EFLEE)
BREHESTAE
ORI 2 £
PR A, 57 22 =

BYHHITESE
N
ELCREE

BEEXL

EAMBEAREBHIEZESM

RAHEARES RS REE 2 BEFE
BRAERF14ZE16H - EEHMFE
SR R e At

BEARAZERMEFE7(NNKERSE
87(2)% - BMF L BN LT Rk =
LEEBR0IBRBFRD FHES
R HEHFEERTBEENRNS LBRE
£

BIEREA2019RIAF RS EERET
ZEEEARRHETMMBARFIEAR
SEAAIR—FARLNEE CEERER
1) T AR b2 RIETRARFE A #) o

EEEH

BRERAHIN  REBRANFEANL L]
MEFESRERE R EREBAARE
AERBOEHZEH

BERFHRER
RAFEAMNBERAREES  REER
AEBEF LR AARFRMEERD
BEBENMER  ARBIBBEREEFOR
B REBRXHFERARB 2B
AR AEERBECEEREREEAS
BERRA -



__ J/N B

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 September 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) (“SFQ”) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director

EEfA

Capacity/Nature of Interests

510 HEHEME

Ms. Daisy Yeung
B EF LT

Eligible beneficiary of The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (“*AY Trust”)

The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust
(TAY Trust)) 2 A EREZEA

Ms. Daisy Yeung Beneficial owner

B EFZ EmEEA
Mr. Chan Shek Wah Beneficial owner
FREGEE S EmEEA
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Beneficial owner
Louisa EmEA A
M L2 4
Ms. Pearl Chan Beneficial owner
5k {7l H 22 &= Em#EEA
Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited,

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY
Holdings”). AY Holdings was held by STC International Limited
(“STC”) in trust for the AY Trust under which Ms. Daisy Yeung is one
of the eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2018, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

EERRSTRAERRKRAD - HE
RORBEEE2EZRKXRE

R2018F9A30H  ARRIEERZEEIT
BABRARRIREEEEE (FEAGE
HMEREIEG) ([35H M EEIEA ) XV
) 2By R MEEETREEE
RRARAIRB(ES KBS KN )E352
BEEFECMIRBEBRIAES ETR
Bl ([ EMRA) EBEITAESRETES
R ZIZESFR ([1BESFR] ) BERTTAE
RARIRBRAzEEmERBWT

RAEQBZIEFEER
AR EREEOIETEER ([K7F])
Number of
Shares interested % of
BEEZHN issued Shares
BHEE HERITRMD%
2,879,521,438 42.72%
(Note #15+)
18,000,000 0.26%
20,457,000 0.30%
4,680,000 0.07%
2,925,000 0.04%
Biat - ERGTHEZKEZZREGRA G ([
STHEEER]) Z2ENE R 7] 255
EEFRBERNGIIFHE - BXHEZZERA
AY TrustZ ZFEASTC International Limited
([STC International |) #5& & M F L+
BAY Truste EEZ A2 — »
Br E X EEE SN - M2018F9H30A8 -

BEARAEEINRSTBRABRALQF
s E T AEOAE (E& A (ESF KSR
1) EXVER) 2 Bty ~ M B & (B 8
FHEATAIREEIORE
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SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted by the Company in
September 2007 (as amended in August 2013) has expired
automatically in September 2017. To continue to provide
incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company has adopted
a new share option scheme in January 2017. Particulars of
the said share option schemes are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. No option was granted,
exercised or cancelled under the said share option schemes
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 September 2018, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration of the Executive Directors were decided
by the Board as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to a written remuneration policy
(which ensures a clear link to business strategy and a
close alignment with the shareholders’ interest and current
best practice), the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparisons of market statistics. The
INEDs are paid fees in line with market practice. No
individual should determine his/her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual’s responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performance as well as market pay level.
Remuneration package includes, as the case may be, basic
salaries, Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, and other competitive
fringe benefits such as medical and life insurances. To
provide incentive to the eligible participants (including
Directors and employees), the remuneration package has
been extended to include share options under the Share
Option Scheme.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 9
and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 30 September 2018, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

Name Capacity/Nature of Interests
®E/ AR 5/ REME
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation
BRUEEER RERGEE 2 s
STC International Trustee of the AY Trust
AY TrustZ Z5EA
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of the AY Trust
HBEKIET AY TrustZ BI3Z A
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Intergst of spouse
BENEt [P i
China Huarong International Interest in a controlled corporation
Holdings Limited REEGEE 2 s
B E R AR A R
Huarong Real Estate Co. Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation
EREFERAMCEAT RREGEE 2 2
China Huarong Asset Interest in a controlled corporation
Management Co., Ltd. REZmEEE 7 s
REERAEERRNERAA
Taiping Assets Management Investment Manager
(HK) Company Limited BEEBA
AFAEER (B5) ERAT
Taiping Trustees Limited Trustee
REEFERAR XEEA

Note: These Shares were the same shares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung had
deemed interest by virtue of being an eligible beneficiary of the AY
Trust as set out under the section of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at
30 September 2018, no short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares were recorded in the DI Register.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2018, the
Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware
of any person or corporation (not being a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or
taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares
or underlying Shares as recorded in DI Register or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

%%Ai%&ﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁZ%é

RBRAZEFRE
Number of % of
Shares interested issued Shares
BREEZNROEE HERTRG%
2,879,521,438 42.72%
(Note f1:#)
2,879,521,438 42.72%
(Note fif#)
2.879,521,438 42.72%
(Note f17#)
2,879,521,438 42.72%
(Note #15%)
609,914,000 9.05%
609,914,000 9.05%
609,914,000 9.05%
612,900,000 9.09%
612,900,000 9.09%

Wt WERNDREXIEZRERITHRABRK
RO REES 2 EGRAE ] —
HAAE BT L T ERAY TrustE BIE X &
AT DR RBEA R 2 BRBRD -

B 58

Lt A=A R A - 1201859 A 30
B - PARE g 2 58 B 5O M A I S AL SR AT (] 0
R HAAAR D 2 KB -

B bR EE & SN - R20185F9A30H » A
RAIBFHHZEITHA S I MEBEMA
THEE (WFARAEERRSITHA
8) P B fn sk AR R A 10 7 R B AR
S EERA RN ERRET LM ST
MEARRNE 2 EMERIAR ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions

with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company:

1. Master Leasing Agreement

On 24 May 2018, the Company and Emperor
International Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”)
entered into a master leasing agreement (“Master
Leasing Agreement”) which sets out a framework of the
terms governing all existing and future tenancy/licensing
transaction(s) between members of the Group as tenants
and members of the Emperor International as landlords
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)”) regarding leasing of certain
office properties or other properties (including signage
or signboard space) for the period from 24 May 2018
to 31 March 2021 with aggregate tenancy annual cap.
being set for each of the financial years ended/ending
30 September 2018, 2019, 2020 and the six months
ending 31 March 2021 (“Tenancy Annual Cap.”). The
Master Leasing Agreement became unconditional on 9
August 2018 upon getting approval from the independent
shareholders of Emperor International, whereupon
the Tenancy Annual Cap has replaced all the then
annual caps obtained by the Company for the Tenancy
Transaction.

Pursuant to the Master Leasing Agreement, relevant
members of the Group and Emperor International
group may from time to time enter into any definitive
leasing agreement in relation to any Tenancy
Transaction (“Definitive Leasing Agreement”). The
terms of each Definitive Leasing Agreement shall be
on normal commercial terms or on terms which are
no less favourable available to the Group than terms
offered by independent third parties. The terms and
rental shall be subject to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition of the properties and
with reference to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location, area and permitted
use. During the Year, the aggregate amount of the
Tenancy Transactions was HK$9,256,107.

The Company and Emperor International are both
indirectly controlled by the AY Trust. As such, under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Emperor International
is a connected person of the Company and accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master Leasing
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company. Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in
the Master Leasing Agreement by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

Details of the Master Leasing Agreement were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 24 May 2018.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
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2. Financial Services Agreement with AY Holdings 2. B SHEYERRES£EHT
for Emperor Group (“Emperor Group FSA”) VZERREHE((HEEE S
b 1 & )
(i) Date of Agreement
Name of HEAE Amount
counterparty Nature of transaction (ii) Term for the Year
HEHE/ €8 XHME L3 AEECEH
HK$°000
FET
AY Holdings (a) Commission, brokerage fees and (i) 10/09/2015 55
(owned by AY Trust) interest income from the listed members
B EETR under AY Holdings, its subsidiaries and (i) 01/10/2015 to 30/09/2018
(FAY Trustf %) assooiaies‘ (“Emperor Group”) . (on normal commercial terms and at rates
REGEHEXZERET EMKERR .
EHEATIREE A+ ((HeEm)) 2 @ no more.favourable tharj those.ava|lab|e
4 @EBTHEMA to other independent third parties
B—REZGERRETERERT Efh
(b) Maximum margin loan amount BUE=F2E) -

to the listed members of the
Emperor Group
LTESEEET LMNE AR &R TR

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the listed -
members of the Emperor Group
ETREEEET TMKEAAIERSEAA
REREREE

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the listed -
members of the Emperor Group
RTHREXEET FHKELAIRREHRE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the listed 2,320
members of the Emperor Group
REREKEET LTIKERRERANE

Under the Emperor Group FSA, the Group has agreed to BEREEFESpE  AEERE
provide to other listed members under Emperor Group MEEEFRETEM EMKE A A
(i) brokerage services for securities, futures and options RE()ER HELHREEELLER
trading; (ii) wealth management and asset management BN EEEREEEER 5 (i)
services; (iii) placing and underwriting services; (iv) e EE e R (V)R E RIS B1E
financing services including margin loans, IPO loans FREX BXAABKRERKLEH
and terms loans; and (v) financial advisory services. B R(V)E B AR - RIE W
The counterparty of this agreement is controlled by the ZE T BAY TrustiEdlm R 2L B €
AY Trust and the transactions contemplated under the B EEIBE N IR GER ARG 2EE
Emperor Group FSA constitute continuing connected FER S - B FL T BAY TrustZ
transactions of the Company. Ms. Daisy Yeung has EEBEBRIBAZ—  HEEAERER
deemed interest in the Emperor Group FSA by virtue of EEeRMEEEEZR -

being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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3. Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy

Yeung for the Yeung Family (“Yeung FSA”)
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3. Eﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁti?ﬁhé?}ﬁ’ﬁﬂf)z

& B AR 75t = ([ 4%

Name of
counterparty

HARE/ 48

Ms. Daisy Yeung
BRFRL

Nature of transaction
RaME

(a) Commission, brokerage fees and
interest income from Ms. Daisy Yeung
and her associates, but excluding the
listed members of the Emperor Group
(“Yeung Family”)

(i) Date of Agreement

(ii) Term

(i) 10/09/2015

(i) 01/10/2015 to 30/09/2018 (on normal
commercial terms and at rates no more
favourable than those available to other

Amount
for the Year
rEEEHE

HK$'000

FET

15,049

REmRFLL REBEAL  ETEE
REEEHET EARE R ([HBRKK])
e BEE  BEREASHBA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount to
the Yeung Family ‘
RTBRFG G AREREHE

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the
Yeung Family
RTBRIGRREALABREREHE

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the

Yeung Family
REHERER

RYBRREZR

(e) Financial advisory fee from the Yeung
Family

REGRKEZRENE

(f) Commission and fee payment to the

Yeung Family for their services being

provided to the Group

MERREX T EAREERERE 2 F

tRER

Under the Yeung FSA, the Group has agreed to provide
to the members of the Yeung Family (i) brokerage
services for securities, futures and options trading; (ii)
wealth management and asset management services;
(iii) financing services including margin loans, IPO loans
and term loans; and (iv) financial advisory services. The
Group has also agreed to pay commission and fee to the
Yeung Family, including (i) the commission and fee for
their acting as placees or underwriters for the securities
of the Company or for the securities underwritten or
placed by the Group; and (ii) referral fee for introducing
clients to the Group relating to the Group’s business.
Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in the Yeung
FSA by virtue of being one of the members of the
Yeung Family. As such, the transactions contemplated
under the Yeung FSA constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

Details of the Yeung FSA and Emperor Group FSA were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 10
September 2015.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
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4. Financial Services Agreement with Mr. Chan
Shek Wah, Dickson (“Chan FSA”)

Name of
counterparty

HAnE/ 48

Mr. Chan Shek Wah,
Dickson (“Mr. Chan”)
BRepELAE (TBREE])

Nature of transaction

RHMHE

(a) Commission, brokerage fees and
interest income from Mr. Chan and his
associates (“Chan Family”)
REREEREBEAL ([BREZK]) 2
e K25 BRERISHRA

(b) Maximum loan amount to the Chan
Family
BTRRF G ERERSE

(c) Commission and fee payment to the

Chan Family for their services being
provided to the Group

MR R X R AR R R R 2
2 RER

Under the Chan FSA, the Group has agreed to
provide to the Chan Family (i) brokerage services for
securities, futures and options trading as well as wealth
management and asset management services; and (ii)
financing services including margin loans, IPO loans
and term loans. The Group has also agreed to pay
commission and fee to the Chan Family for their acting as
placees or underwriters for the securities of the Company
or for the securities underwritten or placed by the Group.
Mr. Chan is an executive Director of the Company. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Chan
FSA constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

Details of the Chan FSA were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 12 February 2018.

4. RRBERETI 2 SBBB D
Z((REEBR¥EHRE])
(i) Date of Agreement
E=E Amount
(ii) Term for the Year
rEEZLHE
HK$ 000
FET
(i) 12/02/2018 1,249
(i) 12/02/2018 to 30/09/2020 (on normal
commercial terms and at rates no more
favourable than those available to other
independent third parties
B RELERRETEN R T A 28,370
BIE=H2E)
BERKeERERERZE  ARERE

A BR SR bR e 1 (1)a8 75« BRI HAHE
EERERBUMMEEEREER
BRRS  R(NBERY - BRIRE
K BRAFBERER R EHER -
7K 52 [ 1 [R] 2 1] R X 31 Bk S A5t EL 92
EARRAINEF BN KB EHEK
RENEFZARARBHER 2
RER BREERARR—ZWITE
=l BRRERRFHZEEATZ
RGBERARBZHEBERS o

PRECE B ARTS Hh g < SEIB AR AR A
HEIA2018F2H12H 2 A% -
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transaction as set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements, the transactions
as shown in item (i), the amount of HK$9,256,000 as
incorporated in item (iii) and items (iv) to (vi) are non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed
CCTs”) in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INED(s)”) have
reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and
have confirmed that these transactions have been entered
into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no
time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the
INEDs are independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 30 to 53.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$234,900.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2019 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Daisy Yeung
Managing Director

Hong Kong
11 December 2018
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The Directors of the Company have adopted various policies
to ensure compliance with the code provisions of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had complied
fully with the code provisions of the CG Code except with the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 which requires the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer be separate and not
be performed by the same individual.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at 30 September 2018, the Board comprised seven
Directors (four Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”)) who possess the skills,
experience and expertise either in the same industry or
relevant to the management of the business of the Group.
The biographies of the Directors are set out from pages 14
to 16 of this report under the “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung (being
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group) has also been
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company by the
Board who provides the Group and the Board with strong
and consistent leadership while at the same time allows
for more effective planning, formulation, implementation
and execution of long-term business strategies and overall
business management of the Group. The Company has
considered the issue of balance of power of authority on the
Board and believes the structure of the Company, including
strong independent elements in the Board, delegation of
authorities to the management, supervision by the Board
and Board committees, is sufficient to address the potential
issue on power concentration. All Directors, who bring
different experience and expertise to the Company, are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and
that adequate, complete and reliable information is received
by the Directors. The Board is of the opinion that the current
Board structure functions effectively and does not intend to
make any change thereof.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized
experience and expertise in financial, legal or accounting
fields who contribute impartial view and make independent
judgment on issues to be discussed at the Board meetings.
They are appointed for an initial term of three years which
is renewed automatically for successive terms of one year
subject to early termination with written notice being served
by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under the
Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. The Board considered each of them
to be independent by reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications of the
Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of success of the
Group in the interest of the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) by directing and supervising its affairs
and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of
the Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to
carry out the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group, formulate business policies and make decision on
key business issues. The Executive Committee shall have
all powers and authorities of the Board except the following
matters as set out in a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved by the Board:

— determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

— approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;
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declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules;

approving non-exempted connected transactions/
non-exempted continuing connected transactions (other
than those transactions took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved by
the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the
Listing Rules;

approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules;

approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

approving the establishment of Board committees;

approving policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, including but not
limited to risk management policy, remuneration policy
and corporate governance policy;

approving financial assistance to Directors;

ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

approving such other matters or transactions as
specified by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee
or as required by all applicable laws, rules and
regulations from time to time.
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Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of a Director,
relevant laws and regulations applicable to Directors, duty of
disclosure of equity/business interest in the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All
Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is
a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in
order to assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training to the Company:

Name of Directors EEHNE
Daisy Yeung R
Chan Shek Wah PR 52
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa b2l
Pearl Chan R 1, Hfr
Chu Kar Wing KRease
Poon Yan Wai ECE
Wan Choi Ha BFE

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment BEEHEBRRAREBEERA

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year AEFEEZHEESRZBEBREIET :
is set out below:

No. of Meetings attended/held

HESE ETEEAH
Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
TEER
BExps ¥FMZzEE® REZER £ZHE8 HTZE"®
Executive Directors
HITES
Daisy Yeung (Note 1) 9/9 N/A 11 1/1 N/A 17117 1/
B (H:E1) TiEA TiERA
Chan Shek Wah 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 17/17 11
SIS A TEA A TEH
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa 9/9 N/A N/A N/A 17 17/17 11
(Note 2) i@ A TNERA TEA
R (Hit2)
Pearl Chan 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 17117 11
bR 4 TEA TEA TEA TEH
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BYEBTES
Chu Kar Wing (Note 3) 9/9 3/3 0/1 1/1 N/A N/A 1/1
RER (H53) TERA TiEA
Poon Yan Wai (Note 4) 9/9 3/3 11 N/A 1/1 N/A 1/1
ELCE (Hit4) A TEA
Wan Choi Ha (Note 5) 9/9 3/3 N/A 1/1 11 N/A 1/1
BREE (Mit5) TNEA TEA
Total number of meetings 9 3 1 1 1 17 1
held:
BUUER LAY
Notes: Wi -
1. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 1. ﬁﬂﬁi,@\ %‘
2. Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 2. JJ:% EREEg IV
3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 3. FMWEE=E Iﬁ
4. Chairman of the Audit Committee 4. %TZ?E@IF
5. Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 5 RHZE®

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation of the time #&#&al(a )R%$E‘¢tﬁhi\ﬁﬁaﬁ§*ﬁ2¢f
commitment given by each Director; (b) the directorships and EEW ) BREFCEERB R EEFS

major commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance K(C)BEFRETBREETTTRLSTESE
rate of each Director on full Board and his/her respective BE8E@@ZANMBKRREAE 2 HFEXE  EF
board committee meetings as well as general meeting, the &EM RAFERN 2REFHEMNE
Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time E#RFHEETHERE -

in performing their responsibilities during the Year.
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly interval. The Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary and key officers of
the company secretarial team for ensuring that the Board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
meeting agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting
in consultation with other Board members. Board meeting
notice was sent to the Directors at least 14 days prior to
each regular Board meeting. For all other board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. Board papers and related
materials which provide appropriate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors and relevant committee members at least 3 days
before each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting
(on other agreed period) to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which
he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest
and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
such Board meeting. INED, who, and whose close associates
have no material interest in the transaction are present at the
board meeting.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out
below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of four Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson of
the Committee), Mr. Chan Shek Wah, Ms. Choi Suk
Hing, Louisa and Ms. Pearl Chan. The primary duties of
the Executive Committee are (a) formulating business
policies and making decision (including entering into
transactions) on matters relating to the management
and day-to-day operations of the Group; (b) making
and reviewing corporate/financial/treasury planning,
investment and operation strategy of the Group; (c)
discussing and approving any financial, borrowing,
charging and guarantee commitment to be made or on
behalf of the Group; (d) approving any transactions,
including discloseable transactions, exempted
connected transactions and non-exempted continuing
connected transactions took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved by
the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules; and (e) having all power and authorities
of the Board except those matters specifically reserved
for the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”
adopted by the Board from time to time.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

EEXET

S EFERTEBRERREERE
B EEZRETRECHEFESZRTH
TZB8g BHZZE® FHZES I
HERBEREXERZEE -

BEZZEg FHMEZEESNRERZESA
ZERERBIUFNTES -FIBEERZ
BgriMEaBRELBEC RN THER
Begrs%aKE -EFRESFBHIIN

b

HITESE (R2014FE11 5188 K )
WITZESHNBNTERTARN 5
AARBMRFZEI(ZEEXR) R
EEAE SR A RBRMHT 2+ o
WTLZEQETERE A(QFELRE
EEREFATEER@E c BEGITEE
BEERELRE (BREEINRS)
(O)HIE LB AEB 2D B,/
ERETEl - 1B R EERE ()i im
it EFEAASEERRERASEG T
2% BE - WERREBAGE ()
HERMNRS  BREBELMHRUE
mESE  WEGEBImE) EZ
EHEIRETIATEERS 3
REBEXFIRERRTERERS
NEe)EBESSCMABRNRERE -
WEESTITREAZIEEEEGR
ENBAEESRBECEBEZERERE
AEIRIMHEEEREBESSMER
EZEIEERIN

-~
.



/N B
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chu
Kar Wing and Ms. Wan Choi Ha.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; (d) reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee held three meetings during the Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 30 September 2017 (“Previous
Year”) and the interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 31 March 2018;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

ii. annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2018 annual general meeting
(IKAGMU);

v. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended
30 September 2018, reviewed the independence of
external auditor and approved its engagement; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board to adopt a
revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman of the Committee)
and Mr. Poon Yan Wai, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making recommendation to the Board on (a) the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration packages for
individual Executive Directors and senior management.
Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
for the Year are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Remuneration Committee held
one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their
specific packages; and

iii. made recommendation to the Board to adopt a
revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Chu Kar Wing, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being the Managing Director.
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The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the
Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy for
the nomination of Directors and identifying potential
candidates for directorship; (d) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment,
re-election or re-designation of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (e) assessing the independence
of INEDs; and (f) reviewing the time commitment of each
Director. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the
Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the 2018 AGM; and

v. made recommendation to the Board to adopt
a revised terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy
aims to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest
sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee will
also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated
to be appointed as Director that will bring to the Board
against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board that would complement
the Company’s corporate strategy.
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of
five members, namely Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
(Chairperson of the Committee) being an Executive
Director, Mr. Poon Yan Wai and Ms. Wan Choi Ha, both
being INEDs, a representative of company secretarial
function and a representative of finance and accounts
function. The specific written terms of reference of
the Corporate Governance Committee is available
on the Company’s website. The primary duties of the
Corporate Governance Committee are (a) reviewing the
policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company and making recommendations to the Board;

5.

THEERESL (R2012F3528H A
)
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DRRATESEE AN L L (ZEE
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FORF B L - —HBREWEBRELH
FIR R K — R B 5 e @Rt BsE BRFI K
xoEREARZBEZAREMHE
HEAIRARNFHEEER - BRER
ZEGZEI2RBE RN ARAE
CEERNTEZBRRERLAES
SREEBER  O)RTRERARD
AIEETERRETREN HZBR
LEHR CFE BIMEREENK

(b) reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices AEBHEBEREEEARARRIEZSME
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory FAzi7AE: (B REREENR

requirements; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Report. The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and
made recommendation to the Board,;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries with all Directors, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings as
set out in such Model Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing
Rules. The management has provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates on internal consolidated financial
statements which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a “going concern”
basis (with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary) and showed a true view of the state of affairs
of the Group for the Year. The management had provided
sufficient explanation and information to the Board on the
consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before it for approval. The auditors of the Company had
made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditors’ Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

A. Goals and objectives
The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to
ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems (“Systems”). The Systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or losses.

B. Internal Control
(1) Governance Control

The control structure of the Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board

e responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness;

e oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with
the assistance of the Audit Committee;

e ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Systems;

e define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

e determine the nature and extent of significant
risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives and formulate
the Group’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

e review and discuss with the management
annually to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective Systems.
This discussion includes the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions;
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e review the nature and extent of significant risks,
and the Company’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment (as
detailed below);

e review and discuss annually the significant
control failings or weaknesses that are identified
and raised by the auditors; and

e consider major findings on internal control
matters raised by external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.

The management (including heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

e design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

e monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in day-to-day operations;

e give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

e provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

e carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
aspects; and

e alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the
Group. The result of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.
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(2) Operational Control (2) EEEE
During the Year, the management analysed the MAFERN BEEBDHEER

iﬁ&ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ R tED AT -
WHLUL B2 HEE

control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein.

44

Approach taken: The management conducted
interviews with relevant staff members,
reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system and evaluating findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group’s internal
control system, providing recommendations for
improvement and assessing the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review
on the risk management and internal control
are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or
external publication.

Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the
business activities allows close tracking of
various inputs and outputs of the Group’s
business such as customer information system
and human resources. It also tracks audit trails
in the authorisation system, in which permissions
and responsibility of authorisation are clearly
identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the system.

Reports and variance analysis: Such reports
and analysis of each segment are conducted on
a regular basis such that their performance can
be easily accessible.

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
acts as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities.
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(3) Compliance Control (3) EHERE
The following policies and procedures are in place to THBRERERF T ARESRE
safeguard the compliance control: B
e Systems and Procedures on Disclosure e RHNEHEREBRGEHERER

AERES TEEB B T (20
FE) BEEFN-—BHZH
BRABBGENEMNEXRE
BB T KR A MR

of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of internal work team (if required),
that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers should

be promptly identified, assessed and escalated, RMMEAEZEEEE - ESF
where appropriate, for the attention of the SHEBRRBEEELRE (W0
Board. The Board shall make timely decisions on FTE) UWEHEESEEEA

disclosure, if necessary, and take appropriate SEHERR HEEEEMH
measures to preserve confidentiality of inside
information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations and the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements; and

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Group.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by the
Audit Committee which ensures that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters.
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C. AigE®R
(1) BREERESF

C. Risk management
(1) Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board and
management based on (i) the severity of the impact
of the risks on the Group’s financial results; (ii) the
probability that the risks will occur; and (iii) the
velocity or speed at which risks could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risk as follows:

e Risk elimination - The management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation - The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of the
risk to an acceptable level or contingency plan
for possible loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring - It involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not. Accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly
documented as part of the effort to manage
risks.

e Risk retention — The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required. The
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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(2) Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group and their
respective key strategies/control measures are set
out below:

(i) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or
counterparty may fail to perform its obligation
to pay in a timely manner, or that its ability to
perform such obligation may get impaired before
delivery date.

The Group’s Credit Committee, the ultimate
credit decision-making organ of the Group, is
responsible for putting in place credit policies
and procedures for approving lending including
those for approving credit and trading limits
for customers and approving individual stocks
acceptable for margin lending at specified
ratios. The Group’s exposure to credit risk lies
mainly in two areas:

a) Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or
futures may expose the Group to risk arising
from price volatility which may reduce the
customers’ ability to meet their obligations.
The Credit Committee will prescribe from
time to time the lending limits on individual
stock or on any individual customers and
their respective associates by considering
their creditworthiness, financial strength and
the size of their positions or commitments.
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b)

The Credit and Risk Control Department
(“CRC Department”) is responsible for the
daily monitoring of the changes in customers’
positions, their accounts and financing ratios;
to observe strictly the approved financing
and credit policies; to make margin calls
and perform forced liquidation, where
appropriate; to report to the management
regularly and when abnormalities arise; to
closely monitor the unusual movements and
trading halts of stocks and timely identify
non-performing debts; and to demand higher
margin requirements and step up risk control
for particular customers or products, where
appropriate.

The Group has set up policies on customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk. The CRC Department will monitor the
concentration of credit risk and regularly
perform stress tests to assess the Group’s
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy
and to report anomaly or any unusual price
movements of customers’ stock positions.

Lending portfolio

The Credit Committee sets and establishes
the credit underwriting, approving and
provisioning policies. All loans and
advances are subject to credit analysis,
borrower’s due diligence, risk assessment
and are approved by the management
according to the credit policies set by the
Credit Committee. The Loans Operation
Department is tasked with the daily
monitoring of exposures for loans and
advances, while accounts with deteriorating
credit position may be referred to the CRC
Department for closely monitoring. The
Credit Committee meets both regularly
and timely to review the developments and
status of past due accounts and to ensure
appropriate actions are taken in a timely
manner.
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Moreover, the Internal Audit Department AN - A BB 2 4% 50 P IR
also conducts independent reviews on R EFBRREGZS
the adequacy and effectiveness of these BHRBRBETE LS
policies and controls to ensure that the B UERAEEZR
Group is operating according to the BEBX BFREE
established policies, procedures and credit TEETT o
limits.
(ii) Equity Risk (i) = E R
Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price R EE SRR (P
and volatility of equities such as stocks, equity T REEHSKMRIERE) 2
portfolio and stock index futures. The Group BEREERER - KNEEI
does not have proprietary equity investments. BEB ERRE-Z—FA
On the other hand, the Group may be subject | NEE A fEA T B8 &
to exposure arising from the underwriting BAMEAZER  KEEHISE
commitments. The Group mitigates its risks by BEBETAZERNTETH
conducting detailed analysis of the issuer’s Mot RETE R R E LT
fundamentals and pricing against market EITEBONT  ARBREEE
conditions and appetites. Such risk exposure M- BRARER A RELHE
is also reduced by way of internal sales and Ko Mo B T AR
distribution and by sub-underwritings. K -
(iii) Liquidity Risk (i) RBES AR
The Group’s financing business is a capital AEB T REXEBKBEENX
intensive business which may be subject to BREAWEK X RHE
liquidity risk. As part of its ordinary brokerage TREBTE - FRAEBRKE
activities, the Group is also exposed to liquidity Xz —3n REBEIE
risk arising from timing difference between HEEMSRKLETF 2 M
settlements with clearing houses or brokers and HEREMELERERR
customers. The goal of liquidity risk management e M) EcREBERE ZH
is to ensure the Group maintains adequate M ABRANEBETTER
liquid capital to fund its business commitments HECRERMNHEEBALE U
as well as to comply with the relevant Financial NEBTEARETNZXEFE
Resources Rules applying to various licensed B AR 2 EENEERR
subsidiaries. 2K
To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s Finance RENEHERRE ~NEEZ
and Accounts Department and the management MBREGHAHFIARERE
will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity BEAEMAMERAER Y
position on daily basis to ensure availability of REBEHRN  UERER
sufficient liquid funds. In addition, the Group EHMAHAREE D o LN
has maintained sufficient stand-by banking and AREBCHEELTRERIRT
other facilities in order to meet any contingency LEMERE  UEEEK
in its operations. The management believes the THzE - EEEMEE K
Group’s working capital is adequate to meet its SEEEERM B
financial obligations. BITEMBEE -
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(iv) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising
from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or external events. The
Group extends operational risk management
to cover potential losses arising from legal
and compliance breaches. Operational risk is
reduced and controlled through establishing
effective internal controls, clear lines of
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency
planning. It is our corporate culture that the
business and operating line management are
fully aware of their responsibilities for managing
the operational risks of their business units on
a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring
and reviews are conducted by the Compliance
Department and the Internal Audit Department,
which report regularly to the management and
the Audit Committee.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board had received a confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Systems of
the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board, upon
reviewing the Systems, were not aware of any significant
issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Systems.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders
communication policy and shall review it on a regular basis
to ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates
with the Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the
holding of AGM and special general meetings (“SGM”), if
any, which may be convened for specific purposes which
provide opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required
under the Listing Rules and press release providing updated
information of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest
information of the Group on the Company’s website; (lv) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (v)
meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis and
participate investor road show and sector conference.
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There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders
and general presentations are made when financial results
are announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome
to visit the Company’s website to raise enquiries through
our Investor Relations Department whose contact details
are available on the Company’s website and the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolution were proposed at general meetings
for substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the
2018 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and notices of all other
general meetings were sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear
business days before the meetings.

The chairman/members of the Board Committees and the
external auditors had attended the 2018 AGM to answer
questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance of the
Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting had
explained the procedures for conducting a poll voting during
the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code.

Convening a SGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
such Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit of the requisition carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have
the right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM
to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must
state the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal office
of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary,
and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened
as requested.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a
SGM for a day not more than two months after the date of
deposit of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In
addition, such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall
be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either
any number of the registered Shareholders holding not
less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a)
give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;
and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not
less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition Provided that an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required
shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company whose contact details are shown
on “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of this
Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process of the financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards.
Members of the Audit Committee were of the view that the
Company’s auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is
independent and has recommended the Board to re-appoint
it as the Company’s auditors at the 2019 AGM. During the
Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has rendered audit
services and certain non-audit services to the Group and the
remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as
follows:

Services rendered

FriZ AR 3%

Audit services

ZERH

Non-audit services:

FEIRBURTS

Review of the preliminary results announcement
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Fees paid/payable
e ENERA

HK$'000
THTT

2,140
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 60 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 September 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 30 September 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

=ED

HREFHZEHERQIAZHERR

(REREZEAMA L FRLA)

=z
=

Az BED (A TR ) EFJAIIHN60E
43R EEFLEEERDA (U THEIER
A REMBARG (ATHABIEEE]) 24&
B BHmE - W BRERBIER2018F9IA30
AZHEAMBRAREREZALFREZGE
BakEtEEERR SAERZ2PRNE
BHEMER  URKEEMBBERME B
TESHBRME -

BMRE  ZERAVERREBERT S S
MAeEMNC(ESTHREERDEEMT S
e T HEEN2018F9A30H MEA
BRALRBEZAILFENGAPBERREE
BABeRE WO BREB(ABEL)HE
BEREZBEE -

ERzE®R
HACREEZL M ASRMNCEEERT
R EITER - RMEZFEUTAENE
TOEARRE [ ZBERE G BB REA
EZREIAOTIEE-—SBL - REBFES
AR EBRA(EREHEERTRD AT
BRI ZMBLR ES£E YEE
TTRIFEMEREREME - RAEE - &
PIFFEFHE BRI E EE AT
BB RIRMAER -



_ _ F/N BN

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BT

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

ARETEE
PREHEERRERMNELAY - RA
UARGARBRENEHBAEENSE
B BLEERERMNBENEREAMBE
KRHAERRETEREN - ROITGHE
LRERHEBNER -

Key audit matter

BEETER

Impairment allowances for loans and advances

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENNEEFAEETSE

We identified the impairment allowances for loans and
advances as a key audit matter due to the significant
judgement applied by management in identifying and

Our procedures in relation to the impairment allowances
for loans and advances included:

B ERER R BRZRERBRITOERF R -

assessing impairment.
BMEERRBERBERGRTE A —BRRETEE -
LTy B IR AT AT bR B R i A E R -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identifies and assesses
whether there is objective evidence of impairment
and determines the present value of discounted
estimated future cash flows by taking into account
the value of the underlying collateral, repayment
records of borrowers, current creditworthiness and
other information available for those borrowers in
delinquency or default in repayment.
WIS M MR T4 iR  ERERE RGBSR
FHEREZEEERE  WEBt EEERRER  EX
AZENRLE BREEBEENAABERABRERLE
MzBEMABENEEMRMAFRKRERECTHE -

As at 30 September 2018, the total gross amount
of loans and advances were approximately
HK$2,543,580,000, with impairment allowances of
approximately HK$33,634,000, as set out in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.
M2018F9H30R » MINEEA B B AM T20P7H - EX
NG 4E & B84 /2,543,580,00078 7T + H AR B B 4Y
433,634,000/ 7T °

understanding and evaluating the credit risk
management process, including the process of
periodic reviews for identification of any delinquency
in loans or interest repayment and determination of
the impairment allowances;
THRERAEEERREREY  BREUBEHERXENE
PRAMBERLEERMEREETZEREHRERF

evaluating the reasonableness of the management’s
assumptions and discount rates used in the
discounted estimated future cash flows; and
FHEEREZRR LR EFARRSREMA ZHER
EHEEM &

obtaining public information of borrowers, if any,
and checking the estimated future cash flows by
examining the loan credit files and underlying
documentation and other evidence supporting
the repayment records, value of the collateral and
other information available for those borrowers in
delinquency or default in repayment.
BMISEHERAZRRER (F) UERBBEEEN
FEERRIEAXHUAREMABERCH  EfH
BEMMBERAERERIEO 2 HMAEERZE
I REEFARKRSRE -
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BRENSE (&)

Impairment allowances for accounts receivable from
secured margin clients arising from the business of
dealing in securities

K E BB EFEZEWRELIFFIRE IR Z 6 1E %
#

We identified the impairment allowances for accounts
receivable from secured margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities as a key audit
matter due to the significant judgement applied by
management in identifying and assessing impairment.
BB REBFEBEEB RN BEERAREPERRZ
BERBEER-BBERESFE UWTHREREER
WEE R R ERERE R -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identifies and assesses
whether there is objective evidence of impairment
and determines the present value of discounted
estimated future cash flows by taking into account
the value of the underlying collateral, repayment
records of borrowers, current creditworthiness and
other information available for those borrowers in
delinquency or default in repayment.

WMAARE M RERM T4 HRE  EEERERTHREES
FERBEEEER  WiHBt ERERRER AKX
AZENRLH] BRAIGEEREHEBRABRERLE
Wz EBEMAEEHNEEMRMAEARKRRREZERE -

As at 30 September 2018, the total gross amount
of accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities were
approximately HK$5,499,963,000, with impairment
allowances of approximately HK$206,416,000 as
at 30 September 2018, as set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

M2018F9H30R ' REBFEBXB L BRKFRE PR
AR & A /35,499,963,000/% 7T+ H H A201849 A 30
B 2 B {E B 4 5206,416,000/8 7T » G04R & BF 15 2R 2% [
H21FTHE o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BEMzBSNAEEBRETSE (&)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment allowances
for accounts receivable from secured margin clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities
included:

B ERARER S EEXB CRRBEBERIREPKRARZ
HERBRITNREFERE:

— understanding and evaluating the credit risk
management process, including the process of
margin call procedures for margin shortfall and
identification of impaired accounts receivable from
margin clients arising from the business of dealing in

securities;
- THEFHEERREERF  BRERIFSTERHET
MEBKREEEFAEFEREZREEFEETER

ZREEFREPRRNZSF

— comparing the fair value of the securities collateral
with the accounts receivable from each individual
margin client to determine whether there was any
shortfall as at the year end; and

- BEFEFRzAVFERERKERNFREPRIET
BB NEERFRREFEEATRZER &

—  for those margin clients with shortfall,
- BERERIELEZHFEREPME -

e evaluating the reasonableness of the
management’'s assumptions and discount rates
used in the discounted estimated future cash
flows; and

e HEEREBZRILBBGFFARBESREMAD
AR EHEEMN &

e checking the estimated future cash flows by
examining the fair value of the underlying
collateral, historical repayment records and
repayment subsequent to the year end and
other information available for those margin
clients.

s RAETHBENRRZATE BLERCHELR
FREEFALBEAREFP ZHMAIGER &
HEFTARKBEESRE -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Eric Tong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

11 December 2018
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__ J/N B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRkEMEERER

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 I F &

2018 2017

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

MI=E FET FHE T

Revenue YA 6 1,314,270 1,241,000

Other operating income EHth & A 9,946 5,527

Impairment allowances on loans and advances, net of reversal 20 (2,162) (501)
ERNEBRBEREE  fIRED

Impairment allowances on accounts receivable &4 B& 2 2 B B # & 21 (203,416) (3,000)
Staff costs 8 TR 7 (121,642) (111,865)
Commission expenses & X iH (63,684) (140,492)
Other expenses H 3 (117,126) (101,953)
Finance costs 817 % 8 (153,978) (95,552)
Share of (loss) profit of an associate fEfh — BB & A F) 2 (E1B) &7 (2,160) 513

Share of loss of a joint venture fE(E— &L ME 2 EE = (22)

Profit before taxation &% 5% 7 11 660,048 793,655

Taxation 18 12 (110,853) (134,470)

Profit for the year £ E &%l 549,195 659,185

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company 549,195 659,185
RRATHEBEARGEE RN R 2 EE A

Earnings per share S Z 7|

Basic & 14 GICREESEN  HK9.96 centsiBill

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZF5EBEARAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k



__ J/N B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma AR R R

At 30 September 2018 72201849 H30H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B aE TR TiERT

Non-current assets EREEE

Property and equipment ¥1% K 55 & 15 5,118
Intangible assets ZEF & E 16 -
Interest in an associate 7 —HH & A Rl Z#w= 17 1,488
Amount due from an associate & — & A & FIAE 17 5,987
Interest in a joint venture RN — & &% 2 18 472
Other assets Afh&EE 19 9,320 13,309
Loans and advances B3 & Z 5% 20 279,297 171,580
Available-for-sale investment AJ {H &% & 25 - -
301,319 197,954
Current assets RENEE
Accounts receivable fEUEE 21 5,524,233 5,155,297
Loans and advances B & #3% 20 2,230,649 1,612,581
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 30,125 21,866
Hih USRS - ke RIERFRIE
Tax recoverable 7] B I - 42
Pledged bank deposits — general accounts 22 160,000 160,000
BEMRITER - —REP
Bank balances and cash — segregated accounts 23 1,642,300 1,854,475
RITHBRKRER S —BIRP
Bank balances and cash — general accounts 23 883,041 514,129
WITHEBREIR S — —REP
10,470,348 9,318,390

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k



__ J/N B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REBRRE
At 30 September 2018 72201849 H30H

2018 2017
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt TiERT TR

Current liabilities A B & &
Accounts payable JEfTERR 24 1,835,634 2,214,913
Other creditors and accrued charges b {BR Fx & fE 5t & F 122,454 96,030
Tax liabilities F{IEAE 136,443 153,666
Short-term bank borrowings 52 R 1T & 26 460,225 328,511

Bonds issued & #1T1&E% 27 969,859 -

3,524,615 2,793,120

Net current assets FREEE 6,945,733 6,525,270

Total assets less current liabilities 2 & ERABEE 7,247,052 6,723,224

Non-current liabilities E R B & &

Bonds issued B3#1T{E4 27 1,815,181 1,589,114

Net assets FEE 5,431,871 5,134,110

Capital and reserves EAX R %
Share capital i 28 67,408 67,408

Reserves & 5,364,463 5,066,702

Total equity #E#=42 %8 5,431,871 5,134,110

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 143 were ZEE€R20185 12811 B #t & R Z#E T €]
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  HF60BEF143B A M EHREX - WH T

11 December 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: JEERRESZHRE
DAISY YEUNG CHAN SHEK WAH
B BREGEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BFE BEF

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEGRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%)



__ J/N B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER
For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849308 It F /&

Attributable to owners of the Company
LNETE TSN
Capital
contribution

Share Share Special reserve  Translation Retained
capital premium reserve &K reserve profits Total
R RIDEE KhlfRE U BERHE RE @A &5t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEr T TBr TET TEr TEx TET

At 1 October 2016 61,279 2,800,904 9,950 2,004 (27) 1,375,606 4,249,716
#2016F10A1H

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 659,185 659,185
ERRNRZEKEER

Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - (179,305) (179,305)
RIED RS,

Issue of shares (note 28) 6,129 398,385 - - - - 404,514

BRI (Hi228)

At 30 September 2017 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 1,855,486 5,134,110

201749 H308

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 549,195 549,195
FERNREENEEE

Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - (251,434) (251,434)
RIEDEZ RS,

At 30 September 2018 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 2,153,247 5,431,871

#201849A30H

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal $RIFEEIEARRKEAREHITLBER 2
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Company E{EEARQRIRENR2007F4A28 2 £E8E
in issue and the nominal value of the shares issued by the #BUEE —MIM B A B 27T 2 i) 2 EEM
Company for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group <ZZ=% e

reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution EAFARERARRBTFEE THEE
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of EEME—RRMBAREIEBAZFTIE -
management fee in previous years.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k
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__ J/N B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 I F &

OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% T8
Profit before taxation & i A1 i 51
Adjustments for: % :
Finance costs B A
Interest income | B A
Depreciation of property and equipment #J% K & & 2 T &

Share of loss (profit) of an associate
JEE — B ARl 2 BB Cafl)

Share of loss of a joint venture fE{F — & &% 2 518

Impairment allowances on loans and advances, net of reversal

ERRBRZBERE  HERBD

Impairment allowances on accounts receivable

& Uit BR TR 2 R (E 7 1

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EEECRPRZRERERE

Increase in accounts receivable J& U BR ZX 2 3 N
Decrease (increase) in other assets b & & 2 il 4> (4 hn)
Increase in loans and advances B 3 & #2718 N

(Increase) decrease in other debtors, deposits and prepayments

HA R - e MIBERRIE 2 (BB H0) B

Decrease (increase) in bank balances and cash - segregated accounts
RITEB RS —BIRS 2R D (M)

(Decrease) increase in accounts payable fEfHBR 2 CEi4>) 18N

Decrease in other creditors and accrued charges

HpEMERR R ETERZRD

Cash used in operations AR & & 2R &

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 2 &EF B

PRC Tax paid 2 & B {18

Interest paid (excluding bond interest) 2 | & (TR IEEHF 8)

Interest received B Y Fl &

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(AR RECEEH 2REFE

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZF5EBEARAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%)

2018
HK$°000
TET

660,048

153,978
(1,098,642)
1,872

2,160

2,162

203,416

(75,006)

(572,352)
3,989

(727,947)

(8,259)

212,175

(379,279)

(6,649)

(1,553,328)

(127,982)

(52)

(31,195)
1,098,642

(613,915)

2017
HK$’000
TEx

793,655

95,652
(842,883)
1,738

(513)

22

501

3,000

51,072
(469,598)

(2,842)
(190,260)

39,124

(646,619)

666,343

(29,281)

(582,061)
(130,338)
(78)
(6.262)
842,883

124,144



__ J/N B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 L F &

INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&EEE
Purchase of property and equipment B8 B ¥ % & % &

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

HEMERREZAFHIEA

Net cash inflows on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

BERE-—HNBARZRERANFRE

Note
(i

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
RAREEETH 2REFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE

Proceeds from issue of shares 377 R% 17 FT15 3018
Drawdown on bank borrowings 12 EUER 77 {& 3
Repayment of bank borrowings &8 17 f& &

Placement of pledged bank deposits — general accounts
FARERRITER——REFR

Proceeds from bonds issuance 217 {& % f715 5/ 18
Redemption of bonds issued f&[@ 2 3 1TE 4

Bonds issuing cost paid B &% % 175k &

Interest paid on bonds issued B #17&E% 2 B4 &

Dividend paid & 1% &

28

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RE(AR)MEED2REFH

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERBREESENZBNFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
FNRERALEEN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
FRZAESRASEEY

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERBLE/UZEHRIN

Bank balances and cash — general accounts
RITHEB LIRS ——REP

Disclosure in relation to the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities are detailed in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

BRABE RS HNE
EMBRRMES IR -

2018
HK$’000
TET

(4,146)
5

52,702,964
(52,571,250)

1,199,870

(11,268)

(82,386)
(251,434)
986,496

368,912

514,129

883,041

883,041

&

2017
HK$’000
TAET

(3,008)

404,514
18,643,400
(18,864,889)

(50,000)

627,975
(606,067)
(7,090)
(55,836)
(179,305)
(87,298)

33,840

480,289

514,129

514,129

2 WBERE

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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_ _ F/N BN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

1.

General

Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) and acts as an investment holding company.
The immediate holding company is Emperor Capital Group
Holdings Limited (“Emperor Capital Holdings”), which
is a limited liability company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The ultimate holding company is
Albert Yeung Holdings Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI. The entire issued share capital
of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited is, in turn, held by STC
International Limited, being the trustee of The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (the “AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set
up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEGRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%)
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__ J/N B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time,
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Except as described below, the application of the other
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and
(v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, the application of these amendments has had
no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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_ _ F/N BN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective, which may be relevant to

the Group:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration’
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle?

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

68
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_ _ F/N BN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and have contractual terms of the financial
asset that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"). All other financial assets are measured at
fair value through profit or loss and in addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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__ J/N B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised. The impairment requirements
apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost
and certain loan commitments of the Group. At initial
recognition, an impairment allowance (or provision in
the case of commitments) is required for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) resulting from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (“12-month
ECL”). In the event of a significant increase in credit
risk, an allowance (or provision) is required for ECL
resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial instrument (“lifetime ECL”).
Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognised
are in “stage 1”; financial assets that are considered to
have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
are in “stage 2”; and financial assets for which there is
objective evidence of impairment, so are considered to
be in default or otherwise credit impaired, are in “stage
3”". The assessment of credit risk and the estimation
of ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of the
present value of credit losses, which are required to be
unbiased and shall incorporate all available information
relevant to the assessment, including information
about past events, current conditions and reasonable
and supportable forecasts of economic conditions at
the reporting date. For the estimation of ECL, these
are measured as the present value of the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group under the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future
economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities
and is expecting the following impact from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 on 1 October 2018:

Classification and measurement

Classification of available-for-sale investments
— The Group’s equity investment classified as
available-for-sale investment carried at fair value as
disclosed in note 25 will be classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) as the investment qualified for
designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9
and the Group would elect the option for designating
the investment to be measured at FVTOCI.

Debt instruments classified as loans and advances and
advances to customers in margin financing included
in accounts receivable carried at amortised cost as
disclosed in notes 20 and 21 respectively: these
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.

Except for financial assets which are subject to
expected credit losses assessment under HKFRS 9,
all other financial assets and liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same bases as are currently
measured under HKAS 309.

According to the assessment made by the Group up to
the date of these consolidated financial statements were
approved for issuance, the changes in classification and
measurement bases mentioned above in respect of financial
assets and financial liabilities will have no impact on the
amount of the total equity of the Group at 1 October 2018 on
initial application of HKFRS 9.
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2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)
Impairment

In general, the Group anticipates that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred
in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost and other items that are subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group.

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost
will be subject to the new impairment model that requires
recognition of impairment provisions based on expected
credit losses rather than only incurred credit losses as is
the case under HKAS 39. These financial assets mainly
include accounts receivable, loans and advances, other
debtors and deposits, amount due from an associate, bank
balances and cash and pledged bank deposits. The Group
considers the historical loss rates, current conditions and
future forecasts to estimate the expected credit loss. In
general, the Group calculates the expected credit loss by
multiplying the probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default.

Based on the assessment by the management of the Group,
if the expected credit loss model was to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to
be recognised by the Group as at 1 October 2018 would
be increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on accounts receivables and, loans
and advances. Such further impairment recognised under
the expected credit loss model would not materially reduce
the total equity as at 1 October 2018, after having taken into
account the impacts of deferred tax.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEGRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2:
contract

Identify the performance obligations in the

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows and operating cash flows
respectively.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEGRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$27,302,000 as disclosed in note 33. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

Except for the new standards mentioned above, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the future.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods or services.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interest in associate and joint venture

Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate and joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associate and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, investment in an associate and joint venture
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of associates or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associates or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interest in associate and joint venture (continued)
The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is
a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

3.

BEREABEE

REBE LT REERE R (F)
AEEFERESAFTBRBRIANHZ
REIRBELR BB A RERE ° W5
FHEEFATEEE REZ2HEHE
(BREEE) SEREBFSETERF36
SERE—BEETRENS > TS
EBREATNEERE (ERERMATE
BHOERAZERE) BAKREE - K
MR 2 AR EE BB R EREE
Z— B o ZORME R R AT B B R IE
TG ERIFEI6RMER - AR
Mz EE S BRI

HEARBEREHBERB CEATE
NHIRENBEREZ HREFE K
WINWEL ERZBIRE T 2 2 80Hka
PRESZ W B BN B R o A
SENERBEARHAELERERE
it MaxREERA—AEREE @ A
SEEZBAZ AV EFEZREE
7 MR FHEREEB S ERSE39
SRR R E NV P HERE 2 R P {E © B
EBRAAAEEERNEREITBERE
AZiRmEE  ERBERRaedE
ZIERBED 2 A EREEBER
Al A EDRE D a2 TAIFTFHA
BeEZBREELEREARSAZED
XZBEREEA - pIN KEES
SRR AR R 2B i
NAISA S (bR 2 T IR % i
RAREELCEXCERHERBEESR
BERIZAEE AR EZEAR - Bt
B = R B A B RREAMNEME
H s ER 2 BB EN DR E S0
BEXABZEGD  AAKERTHE
AREERERERBHEREN D E
EEm((EREMDHHAR) -

k-t Bl

N

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %R

79



80

__ J/N B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable arising from financial services and is
recognised on the following basis:

e Commission income for broking business of securities,
futures and option dealing is recorded as income when
the trades are executed.

e Insurance brokerage commission is recognised when
the services are rendered.

e Advisory, other corporate finance services fee income
and wealth management fee income are recognised
when the services are rendered.

e Commission income on underwriting and placing is
recorded as income in accordance with the terms of
underlying agreements when the relevant significant
acts have been completed.

e QOther fee income arising from broking business of
securities (e.g. handling fee income) is recognised
when the relevant transactions have been arranged or
the relevant services have been rendered.

e Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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__ J/N B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Employment benefit
Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans

are recognised as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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__ J/N B
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employment benefit (continued)
Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based on
approved formulas that take into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

All other short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised
for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).
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__ J/N B
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The
recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two
categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for loans and receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including accounts receivable, loans and
advances, other debtors and deposits, amount due from
an associate, bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

3.

BERAGFHEHEK(E)
¢RI A(E)
EREEE)

B R R 2

B N U AR SR R R IR B E A EE
Ay EARRT S EREXNEITESR
BE - RUIZHRIR - ERREWRIRR
(BRERBYRZ ERREBR - HAE
WRRR ik B & A RIF0R - iR
THEHBEMASUREEMBITENR) Y
RAERNZZE - R#HKANREIAE
AR EERIR(A TITXERERME
EREBRZEFTHER) -

AR EZEMEE

AR E 2 S REE ST R AR
VWERRREBBEARRATVEIRZE
MEEZFHFITETR -

EARBEWREURE 2N ERER - R
BahERHEERETAZERES -

EHEEZBE
TRMEENRSBRETRET R
- MEARBERRARNIER S
MEERBLEZ -HAXZHAENHEHE
MEEZHIAARARASRECRIF
2 Hle@mEETARE-

MRAHLERSEREMNS EF A FE
AIBSFFAE TR EE A A TR #1%
BRBEZEEER -
B EMEREEMS
EEA B

o BOIASIBHZEAMBEE %

IRz EE

o EHX PRI EBHEENS KR
R FIE &

o ERABRAIREHEARELMFE
eI

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %R

87



38

__ J/N B
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When the accounts receivable and loans and advances are
considered uncollectible upon the bankruptcy of customers,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For impairment assessment, each receivable is reviewed
individually at the end of each month. Specifically, in
assessing impairment for each receivable, management
estimates the present value of future cash flows which are
expected to be received, taking into account the borrower’s
financial situation and the net realisable value of the
underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.
Any impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the loan’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
creditors, short-term bank borrowings and bonds issued
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative shall be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and only if:

e the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract;

e a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and

e the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss (i.e. a derivative that is embedded in a financial
asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss is not separated).

If an embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
shall be accounted for under HKAS 39 if it is a financial
instrument, and in accordance with other appropriate
standards if it is not a financial instrument. The directors
considered that there is no embedded derivative of the
Group which shall be separated from the host contract.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%)
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__ J/N B
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

A financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset
and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group:

e currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

e intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Estimated impairment allowances for accounts
receivable from secured margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities and
loans and advances

The Group periodically reviews its accounts receivable
from secured margin clients arising from the business of
dealing in securities and loans and advances to identify any
balances with objective evidence of impairment indicators
and assess whether impairment losses exist individually.
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group estimates the future cash flows of assets for
impairment testing purpose by taking into account the
value of the underlying collateral, repayment records of
borrowers, current creditworthiness and other information
available for those borrowers in delinquency or default in
repayment. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’'s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Were the financial conditions of the clients of the Group to
deteriorate, resulting in the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, additional impairment losses may arise in
future financial periods.

As at 30 September 2018, the gross carrying amount of
accounts receivable from secured margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities is approximately
HK$5,499,963,000 (2017: HK$4,863,029,000), net of
allowances for impairment HK$206,416,000 (2017:
HK$3,000,000). The gross carrying amount of loans and
advances is approximately HK$2,543,580,000 (2017:
HK$1,815,633,000), net of allowances for impairment of
approximately HK$33,634,000 (2017: HK$31,472,000).
During the year ended 30 September 2018, impairment
allowances of approximately HK$203,416,000 (2017:
HK$3,000,000) and HK$2,196,000 (2017: HK$501,000) had
been made on accounts receivable from secured margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities and
loans and advances respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 L F &

5. Segment Information
Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers,
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of services
provided.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
operating and reportable segments:

(a) Financing —  Provision of margin financing and
money lending services

(b) Brokerage - Provision of securities, options,
futures, insurance, other assets
and wealth management products
broking services and related
handling services

(c) Placing and - Provision of placing and

underwriting

(d) Corporate
finance

underwriting services

Provision of corporate finance
advisory services

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 30 September 2018

Financing  Brokerage

£ Eh T
¢ FEES)

HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
TR

REVENUE g A

Segment revenue - external customers 133,844

DERA - EEF

1,085,879

Inter-segment sales 7 2 $5& 205,580

1,291,459 133,844

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%)

Placing and
underwriting

5. 7 EEF
W$ ABTER (EBLEREN)
HERARREDBRAZENDE
mmmkuwﬁz@ﬂ

REFEVHERESEAESR A5 H

BUTKERTT2H D

(@) E® -~ REFRBEREERE
(b) ## —RHtES - R 88
REg - B E R
EEREMIELR
B RABTFERY
(c) EEEBH -RELELASHERS
(d) XBE - -REHROEREERRE
DEBMAREE
lXTE$$EQHhK&%§} & K m]
W EBZ AT
B ZE2018F9A30R L &

Corporate
finance  Elimination Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TER TER TER

[k

I:l/\

HK$'000
TR

75,920 1,314,270

23,998 (229,578)

99,918

(229,578)

1,314,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. ?WER (&
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBMARESE ()
For the year ended 30 September 2018 (continued) B Z2018F9H30B L FEE (&
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEHEE HIRBITMISERKE -

Placing and Corporate
Financing Brokerage underwriting finance
B K EEHRGH =t o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 00
TE&RT TERT TERT TET T#T

RESULTS %4

Segment results D EFE 4 664,794 770,801
Unallocated other operating income 11
AR BREMEERA

Unallocated corporate expenses
ROBREEER

- staff costs (including directors’
remuneration but excluding
staff commission expenses) (70,467)

—BINKK (RREFZHE
BETBEEIMAEXH)

- management fee to a related
company (note 32(a)(ii))
— BT REERRAZERE (H:32(a)i)
- service charge to related companies
(note 32(a)(ii)) (16,697)
—WRTHERRZRBE (Fi232(a)i)

- others (21,139)
—HAth

Share of loss of a joint venture

BiE—RAELEZER

Share of loss of an associate (2,160)
el — B e AR 2 B8

Profit before taxation %% il 7l 660,048
Taxation F{J8 (110,853)

Profit for the year & 7 549,195

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. DEER ()
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBMARERE (&)
For the year ended 30 September 2017 B Z2017F9A30R LFE

Placing and Corporate
Financing Brokerage underwriting finance  Elimination Total
g% gL RERER txpE b st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR FERT TR TER FERT TERT

REVENUE A

Segment revenue - external customers

DEBA-IEFEP 837,521 132,961 203,708 66,810 - 1,241,000

Inter-segment sales 7 S & 144,343 - 13,560 - (167,903) -
981,864 132,961 217,268 66,810 (157,903) 1,241,000

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEMEEE RPN ISEBKE -

Placing and Corporate
Financing Brokerage underwriting finance
Ex Re mEREGs TEmE

HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T#R TR TER

RESULTS ¥4&
Segment results D #F %4 696,230 34,771 99,205 54,379 884,585

Unallocated other operating income 248
ROBEMLERA

Unallocated corporate expenses

ADELEER

- staff costs (including directors’
remuneration but excluding staff

commission expenses) (62,461)
—BINK (RREFZHE

BEFBHEEIMAEXH)
- management fee to a related company

(note 32(a)(ii)) (288)

— R T-MEERRZERE (H:t32(a)ii)

— service charge to related companies

(note 32(a)(ii)) (13,850)
—WBTBERRZRBEE (Hi32(a)ii)
- others (15,070)
—Hft
Share of loss of a joint venture (22)
BiE—ReEtEEBiE
Share of profit of an associate 513
FEIE— B E R R] 2 5 A
Profit before taxation B AT 7 793,655
Taxation F{J8 (134,470)
Profit for the year F[E )& 7l 659,185

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEGRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

5. Segment Information (continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment results represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
(including directors’ remuneration and central administrative
staff costs but excluding staff commission expenses),
unallocated other operating income, management fee to
a related company, service charge to related companies,
share of loss of a joint venture and share of profit or loss of
an associate. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors of the Company for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment. No analysis of
segment asset and segment liability is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment. Therefore, only segment
revenue and segment results are presented.

Other segment information
For the year ended 30 September 2018

Financing
&N

HK$000
TR

Additions of property and equipment
NEMEREB

3,068

Depreciation of property and equipment

MERZRBIFE

Impairment allowances on accounts receivable

JEAR R 2 R E B

203,416

Impairment allowances on loans and
advances, net of reversal

ERRBRZBERE - HRED

2,162

Interest income F U A

1,085,879

Finance costs B2 A 153,978

Brokerage

HK$'000
TER

5. DERER (&
DEBAREE (&)
2|0z SRR AN F3MM 2
AEBEGAVBRERMEAZAEES
HIRAER © 73 BB B R K 0 BB AT R ER
M MARDEFRITHER (8218
EEZMeRPRITBRABRA - B
THEXHERIN - RO BEEMEE N
A BT RHBAERRZERE KT
BEARZKRGE BE—RAELXE
Z 8 K e AE — B 2 A ) 20 M B e
Bt BRARRBMITERTZ2HRAED
EEREFERR 2EE - FAEZES
REALGEEHEGEBENUDEE
BRNEFHERE - WEZINDHBEEMRD
MEE - Hit  E255BRARDH

HihnHER
B Z£2018F9H30H L FE

Placing and
underwriting
gL GEREGH
HK$’000

THET

Corporate
finance
PERE
HK$'000
THT

Total
st
HK$'000
FET

1,073 5 4,146

1,277

1,872

203,416

2,162

1,098,642

153,978
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. 7 EER (&
Other segment information (continued) HihpPER (&)
For the year ended 30 September 2017 B ZE2017F9H30H EFE
Placing and Corporate
Financing Brokerage underwriting finance Total
B fi S B8 TEME et
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET T FiEx FET
Additions of property and equipment 2,316 690 - - 3,006
REMERERE
Depreciation of property and equipment 165 1,562 - 11 1,738
MERREINE
Impairment allowances on accounts receivable 3,000 - - - 3,000
R TR 2 BUE B
Impairment allowances on loans and advances 501 - - - 501
BERRBRRERE
Interest income F B UA 837,521 5,362 - - 842,883
Finance costs ##% % 95,552 - - - 95,552
Geographical information it & & B
The following illustrates the geographical analysis of the ITHBASEEREHINTETR 2 WA
Group’s revenue from its external customers, based on 2RO MKRBBINEREE 2K
the country from which the trades are derived in relation to LIWAME + HERR S RFEE, K
brokerage revenue from overseas products trading or/and FER EEEaEECERMERAM
based on the country in which the customers are located s NDEREFAECER -

in relation to financing, placing and underwriting and
corporate finance revenue.

Revenue

LON

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TBRT

Hong Kong &% 1,299,234 1,214,935

United States £ 15,026 26,042

Others EAth 10 23

1,314,270 1,241,000

Information about major customer EBEXrEEXEFZER

For the years ended 30 September 2018 and 30 September B £2018%9H30R k201749 H30H
2017, no single customer amounts to more than 10% of the IEFE - TEE -ZFPEROBAGAR
Group’s revenue. EERANI0%IA L

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEGRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

6. Revenue 6. WA

Commission and fees income on dealing in securities

BEERSZBERERKA

Commission and fees income on dealing in futures and options contracts

EENEREANZAERERKA

Commission from insurance brokerage and wealth management

KL kMEEREZAE

Corporate finance advisory services fee income

TEREBERRBEERA

Placing and underwriting commission

RERBEHEAE
Interest income from: JA FE R 2 F B A -

Margin and initial public offer financing (“IPO”)
HFREBRABBBR(TERARBR]) @®E

Loans and advances B & N #k
Bank deposits R 1717 &

Others E

2018
HK$’000

FET

93,745

19,177

8,159

18,627

75,920

799,440

286,439
12,684

79

1,314,270

7. Staff Costs 7. EIRA

Staff costs represent the amounts paid and payable to the
directors and employees and comprise:

BETRABENEENTFTEEREE 2SR B
Salaries, bonus and allowances ¥4 - {E4T &2 84

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme & /K18 ¥ 51 21 4 7

2018
HK$’000
TERT

118,173

3,469

121,642

1,241,000

2017
HK$’000
TET

83,487

30,126

13,986

66,810

203,708

584,430

253,091
5,323

39

2017
HK$’000
TET

111,865

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 L F &

8. Finance Costs 8. MBER

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Interest on: T3|IEE 2§ 8 :

Bank overdrafts and loans $R{T:& X K E X 31,176

Bonds issued B #1TE% 122,783

Others E 1th 19

153,978
9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERBETHAEZHME

Emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2017: 7) BB F76L (20174 : 7hi) EF
directors and the chief executive were as follows: FESTBRAEZHMEWOT -
For the year ended 30 September 2018 B Z2018F9H30HILFEE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HrEs BUFHGES
Choi

Daisy Chan Suk Hing, Pearl Chu Poon Wan
Yeung Shek Wah Louisa Chan Kar Wing Yan Wai Choi Ha Total
CEE R#z 3l R RER ELR BYE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER TR TR THER TR TR TR

(Notes (b), (d)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c))

#b) () ) #b) (W) ) (Wit)

Fees 1% 200 235
Other remuneration Zft ¥4

Salaries and allowances

FrlEd

Discretionary bonus (Note (a))

BiEkL (Wita)

Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme

RICEHABER

Total remuneration

oL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&
9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 9. EERESTHAEZ#H 2
(continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2017

Executive directors

(42 )
HZ2017F9A30H L FE

Independent non-executive directors

UinEs BIFHTES
Choi
Daisy Chan Suk Hing, Pearl Chu Poon Wan
Yeung Shek Wah Louisa Chan Kar Wing Yan Wai Choi Ha Total
Eie RAE M R KER BLE BVE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER ThER ThER ThER ThER TER ThR ThR
(E N (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c))
Wity) (@) ‘ : (c)) J
Fees % 150 150 150 150 220 220 220 1,260
Other remuneration £ 8%
Salaries and allowances 2,049 4417 2,283 1,968 - - - 10,777
EeRER
Discretionary bonus (Note (a)) 6,000 6,000 1,291 954 - - - 14,245
MERAL (W)
Contributions to retirement benefits 17 18 160 146 - - - 341
scheme
RINEM B3
Total remuneration 8,216 10,645 3,884 3218 220 220 220 26,623
Hens
Notes: Bt
(a) Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group's (a) MIBEATRFAEELEEE  BAAK

(b)

(c)

operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Ms. Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and her emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by her as Chief Executive. No apportionment has been
made as it is impracticable to apportion this amount among her
services to the Company and its subsidiaries.

BRMISHRATLRETME

ERAIMTESHNHES RWEFRAR
A N ELBfT 8 X R B 1R 5 E AR R 75 ) IR
B RAFER  EEHERBEALH
MEXFAEREEARTAHE -

(b)

ERAIBEMTEENIE D AREE
EARBREWMBE AR EFHRM - KNA
FER EFHMBERBEENLHERELR
EHERREMABE -

BRFLEITMBARBZITERAEN
RERABBEZHERERIERSZRT
BABFriRftz RIBMES ZME - R
ORI M A DR N E B AR R R
BRSNS EITIRLL IS 5 - SR S
EADE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

10. Employees’ Remuneration 10. EEM <
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REZ2018F9H30H ILFE - K&EE
Group included four (2017: three) directors of the Company HEASZETFMATEEARARTNSA
for the year ended 30 September 2018, details of whose (20175 =R)EF KREZMEFE
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 9 above. R EXHAOEE - RAFE - Heg—
The emoluments of the remaining one (2017: two) individual H(2017F - MB) AT 2Bl T -

for the year were as follows:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

FiERT FTERT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & & - 28t R E & T 285
Bonus fE4L 3,694

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme & #K 18 | 51 2| it 3% PX]

The remunerations were within the following bands: e FTHEHE :

Number of employees

BEAH
2018 2017

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 Jt 24,000,000/ 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7t 4,500,000 7T

HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001/% 7T £7,500,000/% 7T

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the RAFEE  AEEVES NS T EW
Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid EENRESESHMAL  EREEM
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the ABRKBE S IMARE B RESIER
Group or as compensation for loss of office. R fE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR M

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

11. Profit Before Taxation 11. BRBi A 2 A

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

BREBRDE M E R
Included in other expenses: B &R E 37 i :
Auditor’s remuneration % 2K A Bl &
Depreciation of property and equipment ¥ % & :& 1 2 3T &
Net exchange loss [& 3 &5 18 % 58
Operating lease rentals in respect of NA & B 7 K EHEH S
— rented premises —FAE %
- equipment — &

12. Taxation 12. $18

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER

Current year: KEE :

Hong Kong Profits Tax & /& F| 5 & 110,931
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B> ¥ A8 52
Overprovision in prior year: i@ {F FEB58 & # :

Hong Kong &6 (130)
110,853 134,470

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the REEFE  BEMNSH OBLAER
estimated assessable profits for both years. TR FIZ16.5% 2 TR+ E -

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on BIEFEARLEMBEBEMSHE ([
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation ERBBZED REEMEREEKK
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC Bl - RIS E AR 2T E AB25% ©

subsidiaries is 25%.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 L F &

12. Taxation (continued) 12. 818 (42)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit NEEHRBHGSEZLEM2EIE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or ZATEHBRADEFSEEWD T -

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

FTERT FTERT

Profit before taxation B %% A i 7] 660,048 793,655

Taxation at income tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 108,908 130,953
1£16.5% (20174 : 16.5%) Z RSB X5t H 2 1A

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 905 62

SR ME TR 2 R E

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (2,040)

MR ME BARBERAZRETE

Overprovision in respect of prior years (130)
BEFEBREEE
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (51)

FBERBER 2 BIAER

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3,379

ABHANABBIHETE

Tax effect of share of loss (profit) of an associate 356
DME—HBERAREECEN) 2 BT E

Others H (474)

Taxation charge for the year A E T IBH X 110,853 134,470
As at 30 September 2018, the Group had unused estimated 2018 9HA30R « A& & Al A 1E K
tax losses of approximately HK$124,206,000 (2017: EXBBEEZHABAR 2 RKEF 2
HK$104,036,000) available for offset against future profits R B il 51 B 18 5 18 49 /124,206,000
of the respective companies in which the losses arose. No 7T (20174 1 104,036,000 L) ° M
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such BRI GFTRETAIFEAN - WERZS
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. HEBERRELEHRIESE - KMFAZ
The unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely MIAE B & E M B B R4S
with no expiry date but subject to the approval of the Hong ET HEFR BRI B ER - FIAE
Kong Inland Revenue Department. go
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

13. Dividends 13. R E

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

FiEx FERT

Recognised as distribution: #RED K :

Interim dividend paid: HK$0.0221 per share (2017: HK$0.0138 per share) 148,973
B ERE - §A%0.02214 7T (20174 : §%0.0138%7T)

Final dividend paid in respect of 2017: HK$0.0152 per share 102,461
(2017: HK$0.0128 per share in respect of 2016)

2017FENRN 2 REIRE - §AX0.01528 7T
(20174 : Bt2016%F & MK 1510.012878 7T)

251,434 179,305

The directors recommended payment of a final dividend EFEHRNEZE2018F9A30H (EF
of HK0.64 cents per share amounting to approximately B2 REMR B BAR0.64781L - BT A
HK$43,141,000 in aggregate in respect of the year ended 43,141,000/ 7© (20174F : HH&1.52/8
30 September 2018 (2017: HK1.52 cents, approximately il » &% A102,461,0008T) © HH
HK$102,461,000 in aggregate), which is subject to approval FRENAQRIZEERFBEFAE
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general HAEFAEE -

meeting of the Company.

14. Earnings Per Share 14. BREF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable RAaEA ANELHERERZF TIRE
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: THEFREE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000

FiER TR

Earnings Z 7|

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share 549,195 659,185
ARFATESRERRN 2 8T

2018
’000
T

Number of shares &3 & B

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 6,740,846 6,616,587
the purposes of basic earnings per share

RRAESRERRN 2 EBRMNEFHE

Basic earnings per share § RE X ZE R LCR TG HK9.96 cents
8.157%& 1l 9.9678 1l

No diluted earnings per share for the years ended 30 R A A EEE =2018F9A30H &
September 2018 and 30 September 2017 were presented 2017F9A30R IEFE A M EEE
as there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding HEER ALY EZ2IZEFEZE
during the years. REEERF -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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15. Property and Equipment 15. MEREE
Computer
Leasehold Furniture Office and other Motor
improvements and fixtures equipment equipment vehicle Total
MELE BRREE BAERE ERREMSE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TERT TAT TAT TAT TER
COST F &
At 1 October 2016 20165107 1H 12,503 1,948 6,273 15,077 673 36,474
Additions & 2,130 196 245 435 - 3,006
At 30 September 2017 14,633 2,144 6,518 15,512 673 39,480
1201769 430R
Additions 7K & 200 - 48 3,898 - 4146
Disposals Hi & - - - (34) - (34)
At 30 September 2018 14,833 2,144 6,566 19,376 673 43,592
®201859A30A
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RitHE
At 1 October 2016 #20165F10A18 11,216 1816 6,080 13,254 258 32,624
Provided for the year A% £/ 686 85 260 572 135 1,738
At 30 September 2017 11,902 1,901 6,340 13,826 393 34,362
1201794308
Provided for the year A% [& & 828 79 224 606 135 1,872
Eliminated on disposals & & # - - - (29) - (29)
At 30 September 2018 12,730 1,980 6,564 14,403 528 36,205
®201859A30A

CARRYING VALUES & &

At 30 September 2018 2,103 164 2 4,973 145 7,387
®201859A30A

At 30 September 2017 2,731 243 178 1,686 280 5,118
12017694308

All the above items of property and equipment are FrE Ll 2 MERFREHEB I UAERE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% B20% 2 FRTLATE - HWEEER
per annum, except that leasehold improvements are FHEASSF (AREEAE) TUNE -

depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms or 5 years.
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &
16. Intangible Assets

6. BF&EE

HK$’000
FHE T

COST K&
At 1 October 2016, 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2018 9,802
2016510418 ~ 201749 H30R K&20185F9 H30H
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
W XORE
At 1 October 2016, 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2018 9,802

R2016F10A 18 201749 A30H &2018%9 530H

CARRYING VALUES fRHE &

At 30 September 2018 7201849 A30H

At 30 September 2017 18201749 H30H

Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from the effective
day of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong
Futures Exchange and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited in year 2000.

17. Interest in an associate

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate

RIEEMBERRZIRERA

Share of post-acquisition (loss) profit and other
comprehensive (expense) income

G EER (BR) BN REMEE (X)W

X2 51 B 2000F B2 F - BB HIRFT M
EBPRBEERRAFZAHERAH
FEIR105F T LA#E3H o

17. R —BBERR 2R

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT FERT
1

(M

Amount due from an associate (Note 1)
JiE W — FeI Bk & R B ERIE (M et 1)

Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost of investment

B EOoREEBBIREKAK

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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17.Interest in an associate (continued) 17. A —RBBELNT 2 R (&
As at 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2018, the R2017F9H30H K20184F9H30H -
Group had interest in the following associate: REEBRN T B AT EERER
Form of Proportion of nominal
business Place of Class of value of issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation  share held held by the Group Principal activity
AEERRRERT
ERER EBERES SR AERGER RAEE LA TEXEH
2018 2017
(Note 2) (Note 2)
(Hiiz2) (Hzt2)
Boom High Investment Limited ~ Incorporated ~ BVI Ordinary 28% 28%  Trading in securities
(“Boom High") Eaniaa RERUEE shares and investment in
BERERRAR (B LER funds
BHBEEREERE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET

The Group’s share of (loss) profit (2,160)
REE RS (BE) & H

The Group’s share of total comprehensive (expense) income (2,160)
REEEEE2E (RS WREHE

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the associate
AREBERBE AR Em 2 RMAE

Notes: Hiat -

(1) The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest (1) BR—REBERRELEEE 28K
bearing and has no fixed term of repayment. I 48 [E) AR FRAR o

(2) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Boom (2) BERAEEREXZTBEREERKS
High because it has more than 20% voting rights in its financial HAEBR20% 2 IREE WASEHS
and operating policy decisions. ERITEEREEN -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
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18. Interest in a joint venture
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as
follows:

Cost of investment in a joint venture

R—BaZEEZRERAK

Share of post-acquisition loss and other comprehensive expense

FEAE W BB 12 B 18 R B b 28 32

1. R —RHEELEER

AEER-—FEEhEIREZFHEN
™

2018
HK$’000

2017
HK$’000

FERT FET

Form of
business
structure

Place of Class of

Name of entity incorporation

BEEZR FREREA ERKLH

Incorporated  Hong Kong
Rl AV e

Emperor Prestige Credit Limited
(“EPCL") (formerly known
as Emperor Shiying Finance
Limited)

REFHEEBRAT
([RELHEER]) (AR
RELRYBERAR)

Note: As at 30 September 2017, the Group held 55 units of shares,
representing 55% interests in the joint venture. The shares
provided the Group with the share of returns from the joint
venture.

LAk

Pursuant to the contractual agreement, unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control is required for all the key
financing and operating decisions in the joint venture. As
of 30 September 2017, the Group held 55% of the shares
of the joint venture and the other 45% shares were held by
a third party. The arrangement of sharing of control was
contractually agreed by both parties. As such, the interest of
the Group in EPCL was classified as a joint venture.

share held

550 b

Ordinary share

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital
held by the Group
AEERERCERT
RAEE 2 A
2018 2017

Principal activity

N/A 55%  Money lending
TER B

HiaF - R20179F9A30H » AN & @ B55M
B - MERNA S DR 255% -
ZERHBEAEENZREALDE
Z Bl -

BIBEEOHE  AECECHATEY
BREERATEDZIEGE2ET —H
B E - R2017F9A30H » AEHEH
BEDEMRMD Z55% @ M EM45%[% 1%
HEZARFE DEEHEZLZHT A
EFUEHFREE - Bt - XEER
REEBEECERNIDEREED
%o

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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18. Interest in a joint venture (continued)

SELEER(F

18. R —F

108

The Group’s share of loss A% B fE(5 &8

2018 2017
HK$’000

HK$’000
TET TEx

The Group’s share of total comprehensive expense
REEREE 2 HERX EE

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the joint venture

AEEREELE RS ZRmAE

On 22 March 2018, such contractual agreement was
terminated and this third party has withdrawn its capital
investment from EPCL at its carrying amount (the “Date
of Withdrawal”). Thus, the directors of the Company
considered it ceased to have joint control over EPCL at
the Date of Withdrawal and consider there was a deemed
disposal of the interest in a joint venture with no gain or
loss resulting. Effective from the Date of Withdrawal, the
Group became the sole owner of EPCL that its assets and
liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows have been
consolidated. On the same date, the name of the Company
was changed from Emperor Shiying Finance Limited to
Emperor Prestige Credit Limited. The following table shows
the assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
the deemed acquisition:

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
the deemed acquisition

20183 H22H @ Z A KWL 1L
MZF=—NEREMERREFSBEE
BOEEAKRE ([HEBEH]) - Bt
ARRESERSENME AR ~EH
RESUEEHRAKRZNE  IRR
HRAREHERZEEE AN EE
W EiE - BT B ME - AKE
ERRREFSBEENE—HEA  H
BERAE WA FAXKEZRED
maAR - RAB  ZAREWHRE
RN BERARNENAEELHEER
BRAR - TRZJNRIEREEH 2
T EERCHRBRE

REERBERZIBBEERCER
=R

HK$'000

FiERT

Bank balances 1745 # 472
Accrued charges st & A (8)
Net assets acquired at the date of deemed acquisition PR VEUEE B 81 2 Fr it 38 % & & 464
HK$°000

FET

Bank balances acquired Pl % 4R 17 45 6 472
Less: consideration transferred ¥ : 2 &K (B -
Net cash inflows on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary 1R EWEE— B AT 2 HB LR A 472

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
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18. Interest in a joint venture (continued) 1. R— BB bE R (E)
Net cash inflows on the deemed acquisition of the RIEWEZHMBRARZFRERAER
subsidiary have been disclosed in the consolidated HEHaRERHEE-
statement of cash flows.

19. Other Assets 19. Hth & &

2018 2017

HK$000 HK$’000
FERT FET

Statutory and other deposits J& & & H % & 9,320

Statutory and other deposits represent deposits with various ETE MEME S IRER TR S KA
exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest BZ2EE  ZERER/RER -
bearing.

20. Loans and Advances 20 ERREXK

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER

Fixed-rate loans receivable & & F F X E R 2,524,430 1,791,466

Variable-rate loans receivable JEYT B & & 19,150 24,167

2,543,580 1,815,633

Less: Individually assessed impairment allowances (33,634) (81,472)

R BB RHE 2 BB

2,509,946 1,784,161

Analysed as: D114 :

Current &) 365 2,230,649 1,612,581

Non-current 3E 7 Eh &85 279,297 171,580

2,509,946 1,784,161

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 L F &

20. Loans and Advances (continued) 20 ERRBR(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s fixed-rate and RNREBEZREUMEBEENREEEERZE
variable-rate loans receivable together with their remaining HEZRFHREONBHA2HAT

contractual maturity dates are as follows:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

FTERT FTERT

Fixed-rate loans receivable: JEUEE FI E & 7
Within one year —&F X 2,034,038 1,593,567

In more than one year but no more than five years 90,384 63,587

—FHERAFA

Over five years A 14 180,267 92,833
2,304,689 1,749,987

Past due but not impaired & # Hi18 K E 186,107 10,007

2,490,796 1,759,994

Variable-rate loans receivable: FEW Y B &3k :
Within one year —fF R

In more than one year but no more than five years

—FRELFA

Over five years L 1%

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k



__ J/N B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

20. Loans and Advances (continued) 20 ERRBR(E

Note: As at 30 September 2018, included in the fixed-rate loans
receivable were balances of approximately HK$186,107,000
(2017: HK$10,007,000) which had been past due but not
impaired. Taking into account the creditworthiness of the
borrowers, collateral value and executable subsequent
settlement arrangements, the executive directors of the
Company considered that no allowance for impairment was
necessary as at 30 September 2018 (2017: HK$nil).

The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable
are as follows:

2018 2017

Effective interest rates:
o 5

K1zt - M2018F9A30H EWEE M X &
X E B A #49186,107,0005 T (2017
F : 10,007,000/ 70) A& B m R
TMERE - EEBBRAZEEE -
KHEREBERAIBTHESEELT
RABRITEERE  N2018F9A°
0B EFEH B EREE (2017F : £
BT e

AEBRRERZERMENT

Fixed-rate loans receivable 0.19% per month to 3.83% per month 0.42% per month to 3.99% per month

& Ui [E] 7 A & & 3R £ H0.19%%3.83%

Variable-rate loans
receivable
EUOE BE

As at 30 September 2018, 119 (2017: 89) secured
loans with the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$785,358,000 (2017: HK$798,016,000) were secured
by first legal charges in respect of respective properties
located in Hong Kong. The collateral for each individual
loan is sufficient to cover the loan amount on an individual
basis. They were advanced to various independent
borrowers and will be due for repayment within 1 to
30 years (2017: 1 to 30 years). The remaining balance
of the loans receivable amounting to approximately
HK$1,724,588,000 (2017: HK$986,145,000) were provided
to independent third parties of the Group, of which the
loan amount of approximately HK$886,388,000 (2017:
HK$474,869,000) were with second or third legal charges
in respect of properties located in Hong Kong and will be
due for repayment within 1 to 30 years (2017: 1 to 30 years)
from the respective loans’ date of advance.

As at 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2017, each of
the fixed-rate and variable-rate secured loans receivable
represented less than 10% of the gross loans and advances
balance.

Prime rate per annum to
prime rate + 1% per annum

BFEREEINRESFREENE1%

& F0.42%%3.99%

Prime rate per annum to prime rate +
3% per annum
BEREBNEZEFREENE+3%

R2018F9A30H » 1191 (20174
89IH ) 44 %8 #7785,358,000/8 7T (2017
F : 798,016,000 70) 2 B HE XK
TWABBEWMEZE AT WLER
FoZENERNERMBZUERS
HEXREBE ZEERDNENTEZAH
BIERA - WER1EIF (2017
F1E30F) NEHEE - BKE R
4 B8 #91,724,588,0005 7T (20174 -
986,145,000 70) Iy At T AEE 2
BB =77 0 E A #9886,388,000/8 7T
(20174 : 474,869,000 7T) 2 & Y
NEBEMEZE _RKFEFLEHLAE
R WBERASHEBAER 2 AHE
FH1E30%F (20174 : 1230%F) N EIH

B -

R2018F9 A30H 201749 A30R -
BIBEWE T R &7 BB BEHERY
DPRERRBKAERBEE Z210%
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

20. Loans and Advances (continued) 20 ERRBR(E

As at 30 September 2018, included in the gross amount of
loans and advances of approximately HK$2,543,580,000
(2017: HK$1,815,633,000) were the impaired loans of
approximately HK$33,634,000 (2017: HK$31,472,000).
Details of movements in the allowances for impairment are
as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

FVZEER

Provision for the year

FREE

Amounts recovered during the year

FRKEZ 25

MR2018F9A30H EFX LA R Z 4
%8 #492,543,580,000/ 7T (20174 -
1,815,633,000/870) A BIEREE KL
33,634,000/ 7t (20174 : 31,472,000
BIT) c BEREZESH 2FBOT

2018 2017
HK$'000

HK$’000
FERT FET

31,472

2,196

(34)

Balance at the end of the year

FRZIER

33,634

To minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the Group
has established credit policies to ensure all loans and
advances are subject to credit risk assessment and ongoing
monitoring, including evaluation of customers’ credit ratings,
financial background and repayment abilities. The Group
has a policy for assessing the impairment allowances for
loans and advances on an individual basis. The assessment
is based on a close monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on management’s
judgement, including the current creditworthiness of the
borrowers, collateral value and the past collection history
of each individual borrower. Taking into account the
above, the executive directors of the Company have made
accumulated allowances for impairment of approximately
HK$33,634,000 (2017: HK$31,472,000) as at 30 September
2018. The Group had commenced legal proceedings
against the borrowers of these impaired loans of the loan
amounts totalling approximately HK$30,971,000 as at 30
September 2018 (2017: HK$30,971,000) for recovery. As at
the reporting date of the consolidated financial statements,
the legal proceedings are still in progress.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and advances
approximate their fair value.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

AREEERR  AEEEHTEEER
K UNEBRAEBEREBRHZEE
ERFHERFEEER (BEFEREREY
FEEFR UBESREELEN) MR
R o REBRAZRERNEEFHERK
BRBERECHRK - BETENDE
REZEE  HEEKETRE M2
FHEUAREERE 2 HE (BRFESRAMER
BERAZHEBEEE HKHEREELSA
FERGLE) - KLEELMZE AR
BHMITEE D N2018F9A30REE A
33,634,000/ 7t (20174 : 31,472,000
BIL) 2 BEPRERE - ASEE Mm%
ZREE R T R201859A30R 58 4
30,971,000/ 7t (20174 : 30,971,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

21. Accounts Receivable 21. FE W BR =X

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing in securities:

KEBEFEBEXRH 2 BYPTRRK

Clearing houses, dealers, brokers and cash clients
RBEM R KREERBREER

Secured margin loans B FFREER

IPO margin loans X AFABRITERER

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing in futures contracts:

KEMEEGHNERRL 2 BYTRN :

Clearing houses and brokers
mEMRER

Accounts receivable from the business of corporate finance

KEDEREERZRERR

2018
HK$°000

2017
HK$’000

FiER FET

98,292 115,122
5,499,963 4,863,029
- 108
131,819 175,998

575 4,040

Less: Individually assessed impairment allowances

B B RE S 2 R E B

5,730,649 5,158,297

(206,416) (3,000)

5,155,297

5,524,233

The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for
secured margin loans and IPO margin loans, arising from
the business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date, and of accounts receivable arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade date.

Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from the
business of corporate finance are determined in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group seeks to maintain
tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable from
the business of corporate finance in order to minimise the
credit risk.

As at 30 September 2018, the total market value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of the
secured loans to margin clients was approximately
HK$26,749,000,000 (2017: HK$28,270,000,000). 86%
(2017: 88%) of the loans were secured by sufficient
collateral on an individual basis. Management has assessed
the market value of the pledged securities of each individual
customer who has shortfall as at the year end.

ERBEEEBMEE ZRKER(BE
A RER LR ERAFBRITRERE
S 2 HEHRAXZHEERMA - MH
EAMBEBERBMEL 2 BRWIRR 24
BHRARXZBE—B -

KECERERT 2 BRBEFRNIEREE
BHIREBEANIGRERE - RIFEEER
R\ - AR E S REE R ARERERS D
ERE X 2 ERRRRTBREERE -

MR2018F9A30H * MR FHERF
ZHEBBEERmMEAKFRTUAEKEZ
A2 MEEEEX /26,749,000,0005%
7T (20174 : 28,270,000,000/71) © &
K 286% (20174 : 88%) 1L B Bl E=HE LA
THIRIFRIERT - EBEENERT
HEERNHREBRZELIMERESZ
A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

21. Accounts Receivable (continued)

Details of impairment allowances in respect of the secured
loans to margin clients are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

FVZEER

Provision for the year & A &

21. B AR (&

ERRETHREFPZBEMER R
BEREFBET

2018 2017
HK$'000

HK$’000
FERT FET

3,000

203,416

Balance at the end of the year

FRZ G

206,416

No further impairment allowance is considered necessary
for the remaining margin loans based on the Group’s
evaluation of their collectability. The loans to margin clients
bear variable interest at commercial rates and are repayable
on demand. No collateral was pledged for other accounts
receivable.

As at 30 September 2018, accounts receivable from
foreign brokers denominated in Australian dollar,
Renminbi, Singapore dollar and United States dollar
were approximately HK$232,000 (2017: HK$230,000),
HK$722,000 (2017: HK$52,000), HK$146,000 (2017:
HK$4,000) and HK$86,692,000 (2017: HK$148,482,000)
respectively.

As at 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2017, no
individual account represented more than 10% of the total
balance of accounts receivable.

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and IPO
margin loans is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of this business.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

HERNASESE A OE 2 - HR
RIEVERBR T HRERELE—Z
MERE - RETHREP ZERIRY
B EMNKGTEALANERFER - H
b & W BR SR S K R

R2018F9A30H @ JEUIBINE LR
LURIT - ARY - 3N T R ETET
B 9 5l 4 A232,0005 7T (20174 -
230,000/ jT) ~ 722,000/ 7T (2017
% : 52,000/ 7T) * 146,000/ T (2017
F 14,000/ 7t) &%86,692,000/8 T
(20174 : 148,482,000 7T)

MR201849A30H KX201749A30H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

21. Accounts Receivable (continued) 21. EWERRR (&

The ageing analysis of the remaining of the accounts
receivable are as follows:

Past due: #1 8 :
0 - 30 days 0 - 308
31 -60 days 31 — 60H
61 - 90 days 61 - 90H

Over 90 days HB3B90H

BTN EWRR 2 R

2018
HK$000

2017
HK$’000

FiERT FERT

403

105

309

285

Accounts receivable which were past due but not impaired

B8 BB T ERE Z B4R

Accounts receivable which were neither past due nor impaired

BB MERE 2 B ERR

5,195

1,102

229,584 289,965

295,160

230,686

To minimise the Group’'s exposure to credit risk, the
Group has a policy for reviewing impairment allowances
for accounts receivable without sufficient collateral and
those with default or delinquency in interest or principal
payment. The assessment is based on an evaluation of
the collectability and ageing analysis of the accounts
and on management’s judgement including the current
creditworthiness, collateral value and the past collection
history of each customer. Management had set up the
credit limits for each individual customer which are subject
to regular reviews by the management. Any extension of
credit beyond these approval limits has to be approved
by relevant level of management on an individual basis
according to the exceeded amount. In determining the
allowances for impaired loans to margin clients, the
management of the Group also takes into account shortfall
by comparing the market value of securities pledged as
collateral and the outstanding balance of loan to margin
clients individually. Impairments are made for those clients
with shortfall as at the year end and with no settlement
or executable settlement plan and arrangement after the
year end. Subsequent to the year end, the Group has
commenced legal proceedings against the borrowers
of these impaired loans of the loan amounts totalling
approximately HK$325,110,000 as at 30 September 2018
(2017: HKS$nil) for recovery. As at the reporting date of the
consolidated financial statements, the legal proceedings are
still in progress.

AREAEEEERR  AREGER
SR an N R HE R sl e R A8 SR
TR USR] B e BB 2
B - AR AT ERE AT E M 2 4
BRRB ZFRE DT AN E IR E 2 H B
(BRBREEFPZREEE BHmE
BMBEERGLE) - EEBIH YR
AIEPRERHEEEEHRINEE
[RER - EBEUEEERERR ZHE
ERER AR E AR BN EIZ B HE A
REEFREFP SR ZBERRNEE
B AREEREBMEBNRCENES
(EREHM cHTEEERESCER
P E R 2 REBERIELEME BIE
RZER - ERMRFERBBEERZER
MR 48 BRI BB R AT ITEVAEB
AERRZZEFEFPELRE - RF
mRIR AEEDRZEREERTR
20189 A30H #2 &2 £9325,110,000/%
TC (20174  TETT) ZERWMERA
RFERFDABRDER - RELFLHEA
MHEBEREMEH  ERFADEETT
h oo
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22,

23.

Pledged Bank Deposits — General Accounts

Pledged bank deposits 2 # 1 R1T71F 5

2. CHEARITER - —RRF

2018
HK$’000

2017
HK$’000
TET

160,000

FiER

160,000

The deposits of HK$160,000,000 (2017: HK$160,000,000)
with a bank were to secure the banking facilities granted
to the Group to the extent of HK$530,000,000 (2017:
HK$530,000,000), of which HK$nil was utilised as at 30
September 2018 (2017: HK$315,000,000). The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the expiry of banking
facilities.

Bank Balances and Cash

Bank balances R 174 8

— segregated accounts (Note)
— BB (M)

— general accounts and cash
——mREPLES

$8 77 17 2.160,000,0007% 7T (20174 :
160,000,000/ 70 ) EE A A S EERIR
TR & £ %530,000,000/8 7T (20174
530,000,000/ 7T) 2 EH#H - HRZTET
B R2018F9H30BH EE A (2017F :
315,000,000 7T) - 2 SEMIFRITF
HEREBRITRE DM ERR -

MBITEBREAES

2018
HK$’000

2017
HK$’000

FiER FTiER

1,642,300 1,854,475

514,129

883,041

2,525,341 2,368,604

Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients and

other institutions in the course of the conduct of the regulated
activities. These clients’ money are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts and bear interest at commercial
rates. The Group has recognised the corresponding accounts
payable to respective clients and other institutions. However,
the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset
those payables with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2018, bank balances and cash
denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, Japanese
Yen, United States dollar, Renminbi and Singapore
dollar, are approximately HK$90,000 (2017: HK$nil),
HK$2,065,000 (2017: HK$nil), HK$10,000 (2017: HK$5,000),
HK$261,942,000 (2017: HK$299,082,000), HK$27,249,000
(2017: HK$28,235,000) and HK$2,417,000 (2017:
HK$10,969,000) respectively.

The general accounts and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and bank deposits bearing interest at commercial
rates with original maturity of three months or less.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

Wit HETZREEBBRES  AREWR

BEBERPREMEBERS R
e RERPHEFER—ERZME
BTN RIR LR =S -
AEBERAENTEEES REM
WEZAEBER - AT AEERE
A LABT R B2 1R 6 44 5 % FE AT B
Rz ITE -
MR2018F9A30H » LE T~ 12 KA
ot BE - E7T - ARERF N T
BZRITHEH RIRE D B4 A90,000
Bt (20174 : 2F L) ~ 2,065,000
BT (20174 &8 L) ~ 10,0008 7T
(20174 : 5,000/%8 7t) * 261,942,000
77T (20174F © 299,082,000/ 7T) »
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W IT) KR2,417,000% 7T (20174 -
10,969,000/ 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

24. Accounts Payable 24. BT R

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in securities:
RERBHEEXEB I EMNERN
Clearing houses and brokers & & BT &k &8 42

Margin and cash clients fFE R IRE& T F

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in futures contracts:

KEHMEANBEBERB 2 BINKRR

Margin clients ffE & P

2018
HK$’000

2017
HK$’000

FET FET

802 129,749

1,591,776 1,736,756

243,056

1,835,634 2,214,913

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for
margin clients, arising from the business of dealing in
securities are two days after trade date and accounts
payable arising from the business of dealing in futures
contracts are one day after trade date. No ageing analysis
is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of this business.

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities bear variable
interest at commercial rates, and are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date.

Included in accounts payable, amounts of approximately
HK$1,642,300,000 and HK$1,854,475,000 as at 30
September 2018 and 30 September 2017 respectively were
payable to clients and other institutions in respect of the
segregated bank balances received and held for clients and
other institutions in the course of conducting the regulated
activities. However, the Group currently does not have an
enforceable right to offset these accounts payable with the
deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2018, accounts payable denominated
in Australian dollar, Japanese Yen, United States dollar
and Renminbi were approximately HK$84,000 (2017:
HK$84,000), HK$10,000 (2017: HK$5,000), HK$261,401,000
(2017: HK$356,589,000) and HK$19,012,000 (2017:
HK$13,633,000) respectively.

BHRBEXBMELE ZRNER (FR
)EB%QI ) ZEEHRAXHHEM
BREBRBMEL ZEN
Z,uﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ XA’ —H - AR
K@T#ﬂﬁi%:ﬂdﬁ BRI TRER 2
HE - RS TEEERKEIMEE - &
W B ARRE DT ©

DJ D)Zr} fmﬁ

EFEEEBMELEZENTHFRR
fﬁfﬁ%}f'z KIR TR 5 B 7 N K &t
/L‘;\ ’ I;EH/\\VD éaféiﬁgj:,ffs\}&

& H

<R

h
ﬁ
18

B 0% &
2o
B & M
i
= 3 m
nn|§g—r>|+¢
%%F:“m
o:ﬁiﬁ'ﬁ
ﬁNIﬁf

b

9A30 &2017¢9H305 ZFEH iR
,TA a%? MEFPEREMEE T2

o B # A1,642,300,00058 T &
1,854,475,000%%7_3 o XTI - A& B
R E ATz R EHZ SRR
SR F] R HI BT o

20184 9A30F * AR T - HE -
ELRARBHEZENERD B
# 584,000/ 7t (20174 : 84,000
78 7C) + 10,000 7T (20174 @ 5,000
7 7T) 261,401,000/ 7T (20174 :
356,589,000/ jT) }&19,012,000/% 7T
(20174 : 13,633,000/ 7T) °

R
H
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 L F &

25. Available-for-sale Investment 25. A HEKRE
The Group holds 15% equity interest in Emperor Investment REBZAREREESEARAR (TH
Fund Limited (“EIFL"). EIFL had no business operations and EREES|)I5%RE -HEEREES
had net liabilities as at 30 September 2017 and 2018. R20179F k2018F9 A30H I 4 £ 55

BENEGEREFRE -

In the opinion of the executive directors of the Company, the KANRHMITEERE  KEENRERER
equity interests held by the Group in EIFL are with a primary BESHEFAZRETZEENASKE
objective for capital appreciation and recognised as an AAE WEREBTHBERE -
available-for-sale investment.
The executive directors of the Company consider the fair RRABHITESRE  BERERER
value of the EILF as at 30 September 2017 and 2018 are SZEEFE  HERBEEEN2017F
approximated to zero with reference to the net liabilities of N2018F9A30R 2 A FEEZEINE -
EILF.

26. Short-term Bank Borrowings 26. EHASRITER
As at 30 September 2018, included in the short-term bank M2018F9H30R » & H IR 1T &
borrowings of HK$460,225,000 (2017: HK$328,511,000) 460,225,000/ 5t (20174 :
were bank borrowings of HK$300,000,000 (2017: HK$ nil) 328,511,000/ 7T) 1 & & R 17 f& &
which were secured by charges over client securities with 300,000,000/ 7t (20174 : T/ETT)
market value of HK$1,113,000,000. As at 30 September M {E1,113,000,0008 L2 B F & %
2017, short-term bank borrowings of HK$315,000,000 were W EE IR - R20179F9A308 - & 8
secured by bank deposits of the Group (note 22). The #R 17 {5 5315,000,00078 7T A = B 2
remaining balance represented unsecured bank borrowings. RITEREEIR (HiE22) - HRTZHRER
All of these bank borrowings carried interest with a range of EEEMRITER - MEZSHRITER
HIBOR+1.3% p.a. to HIBOR+2.3% p.a. (2017: HIBOR+1.3% MEBENTHEBRITRZEFREN.3%
p.a. to HIBOR+2.3% p.a.). EEBRITRAZEFE2.3% .2 [E (2017

FEBROTAERBE NI 3%EEHBIER
TRIZEFRBEM2.3% 2 ) °

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000

FiEx FET

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable:

ARATHEERZZ A ERZEEE :

Within one year —F & 460,225 328,511

The carrying amounts of bank loans that contain a repayment on demand
clause (shown under current liabilities) but repayable:
HEARERERBGIEEARATHREZZRITERXRGIARBDEE) 2

FREME :
Within one year — & X 460,225 328,511
Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities 460,225

AR—FREEIARBEBEZEH

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k
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27.Bonds Issued

Current i B

Corporate bonds - Placing R AlfE % — A &

27. BB 1TES

2018
HK$’000

2017
HK$’000

FiER FTiER

969,859

Non-current 3E7E &)

Corporate bonds - Placing A &/f&4 — i &

1,815,181 1,689,114

During the year ended 30 September 2017, the Company
has issued (i) two tranches of the corporate bonds under the
placing agreement dated 15 March 2016 for bonds issuing
with an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$1,200
million (the “1st Placing Agreement”); and (ii) one corporate
bond under the placing agreement dated 14 November
2016 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$400 million (the “2nd Placing Agreement”), in
principal amount totalling approximately HK$611.7 million
and US$2.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$16.3
million).

During the current year, the Company has issued (i)
four tranches of the corporate bonds under the placing
agreement dated 16 January 2018 for bonds issuing with
an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$800 million
(the “3rd Placing Agreement”); and (ii) four tranches
of the corporate bonds under the placing agreement
dated 11 April 2018 for bonds issuing with an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$400 million (the “4th Placing
Agreement”), in principal amount totalling approximately
HK$1,190.5 million and US$1.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$9.4 million).

As at 30 September 2018, the current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balance of approximately HK$969.9 million
(2017: nil) represented eight (2017: nil) tranches of the
corporate bonds issued under the 1st Placing Agreement,
including an aggregate principal amount of Hong Kong
Dollars bonds of approximately HK$909.5 million (2017: nil)
and an aggregate principal amount of U.S. Dollars bonds
of US$8 million (2017: nil) (equivalent to approximately
HK$62.0 million (2017: nil)).

REZE2017F9A30B IEFE » AR
AIE ()R H #H £2016F3H158 2
ez ((F—EEHE]) RETA
+ %A £ &% A1,200,000,000% It &
HFRTMBARES  Kii)RIE A 5
B2016F11A14B 2B E W ([FE =
RERZ]) MBETASBAERZ A
400,000,000 L EH TR RIES
K& EA 4 A611,700,000/ 7T &
2,100,000 7t (#HE 7 4916,300,0007%
JL) °

RAEE KRR EB()VREBHAE
2018F1H16B v I E &k ([E =B
EHml) RETASEAARSZ A
800,000,000/ L EH BT R FE
% R(i)B & B # A2018F4A11H
sz (FUREHRE]) LT
K& %84 H & % A400,000,00058 &
FROEMABIES  A&BEHY
/1,190,500,0007% 7t & 1,200,000 7T
(#8 % 7 499,400,000/ 7T ) °

MR2018F9A30H » KEE N AIEH
K82 BI85 2 £9969,900,000/% 7T
(2017F - ) IEREBEF —LEHH T
T2 N\H (20176 - &) RREH (B
R4 48 %A #9909,500,00058 7T (20174 :
) 2B ES R A2 48%88,000,0003
7T (20174 : #&) (#8E 7 #962,000,000
BT (20174 + #)) 2 ETLEFH ©
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27.Bonds Issued (continued) 27. B RTEH (&

As at 30 September 2018, the non-current portion of
outstanding corporate bonds balances of approximately
HK$1,815.2 million (2017: HK$1,589.1 million) represented
(i) the two (2017: ten) tranches of the corporate bonds
issued under the 1st Placing Agreement; (ii) a corporate
bond issued under the 2nd Placing Agreement; (iii) the
four tranches of the corporate bonds issued under the
3rd Placing Agreement; and (iv) the four tranches of the
corporate bonds issued under the 4th Placing Agreement,
including an aggregate principal amount of Hong Kong
Dollars bonds of approximately HK$1,802.2 million (2017:
1,521.2 million) and an aggregate principal amount of U.S.
Dollars bonds of US$3.3 million (2017: US$10.1 million)
(equivalent to approximately HK$25.6 million (2017:
HK$78.3 million)).

Except for the bonds denominated in Hong Kong Dollars
and U.S. Dollars issued under the 1st Placing Agreement,
which carry a fixed annual interest rate of 5.25% and 4.5%
respectively, the remaining bonds denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars and U.S. Dollars issued carry a fixed annual
interest rate of 5% and 4.75% respectively. All the above
bonds are with a maturity period of 3 years from the issue
date, and the interest will be paid annually in arrears with
the first interest payment date on the first anniversary date
after bond issuance.

Pursuant to the bond instrument of bonds placing
abovementioned, the Group may, at any time, before the
maturity date of the bonds, redeem the bonds by giving
not less than 10 business days written notice at 100% of
the principal amount of such bonds together with payment
of interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption.
The directors considered that such early redemption option
of the bonds was not separated from the bonds since the
economic characteristics and risks of such early redemption
option were closely related to the economic characteristics
and risks of the bonds. Subject to the conditions of the
bond instrument, the bondholder(s) shall not have the right
to request the Company to redeem the bonds prior to the
maturity date of the bonds.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

MR2018F9H30H » REERARIE A
e 2 IEREEB D 491,815,200,00078
7t (20174 : 1,589,100,000/8 7T ) &
(VBIEE B EWEET 2L (2017
F:+H)REES (VREBEE_EE
MRERBTZARES  (INVBREBEE=KE
WRBEITZ R RIES  R(iV)IRIESE
WEEHEZRTZOBRAGES (B1F
K& 48 %8 #)1,802,200,0007% JT (2017
% :1,521,200,0008 L) Z B LEH
N KN 4 #2%53,300,0003 T (20174 :
10,100,000 7T) (48 & 7 #)25,600,000
7T (20174 : 78,300,000/ 7T)) 2 =
TLfES °

BRBREE-—RERRETIABLR
ELAHEZES (DREEEFHNE
5.25% K 4.5%5B) o WAB T RETT
FHEZ# TESH D BIEE T FFE5%
K4 75% 8 BTA Lt &5 2 & m Ef
BEETHHRA=ZF  MAEBEF
S BEEMEBAESFEITRE
BER -

R L EFEE 2 EHIE  AEE
AREFFHEAEREEZEL IR
10EEXAZEMBRMEARESAE
#2.2100%E R & =B E B B et 2 7
ERREEES -BEEZRL - RAEE
BrE BT EEGES DR - tLIAR
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HESHNEEFHBERR T ETHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

27.Bonds Issued (continued) 27. B R1TEH (&

Subsequent to the year end but before the reporting date,
the Company entered into a placing agreement dated
15 October 2018 for bonds issuing with an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$500 million (the “5th Placing
Agreement”) and that the Company has issued two tranches
of the corporate bonds under the 5th Placing Agreement in
principal amount totalling approximately HK$252.8 million
during this period. The bonds issued carry a fixed annual
interest rate of 5.25%, with a maturity period of 3 years
from the issue date, and the interest will be paid annually
in arrears with the first interest payment date on the first
anniversary date after bond issuance.

RELBARZREES[{KBHR - A2F5
17K & 4858 £ % /500,000,000 7T
ZE%ET BH A2018F10A15H 2
IeEtpE ([FREERR])  MAQF
R EBEREE AR S HEETMIL AR
S E A H 4 A252,800,0008 7T 2 A Al
BE% o EHIRE T FF E5.25% 8 -
BRI AERTRBEBH=ZF mA S
BIERFELN  sEAMEBAEFETE
F—(@BFH-

28. Share Capital 28. lR 7

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each
BREEIBIT2EBRAER

Nominal value of ordinary shares
EEREE

2018 2017 2018 2017

Authorised: A :

At beginning of year
F A

500,000,000,000

500,000,000,000

HK$’000
TET

HK$’000
TAET

At end of year
FH

500,000,000,000

500,000,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
BEETRERE

At beginning of year
F1

6,740,845,724

Issue of shares
BEITIRD

6,127,945,724

612,900,000

At end of year
FHR

6,740,845,724

6,740,845,724

5,000,000 5,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000
61,279

6,129

67,408

On 1 December 2016, the Company announced a
subscription of 612,900,000 new shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.66 per subscription share (the “Subscription”)
by an independent corporate. The Subscription was
completed on 14 December 2016 with 612,900,000
subscription shares being issued. After deducting the
expenses in connection with the Subscription, the net
proceeds raised were approximately HK$404.5 million.

R2016F12A18 » KRB EH — KB
VYh¥ERBEESRRAERD.66E
TT R 612,900,000 ¥ % 10 ([RE S
H]|) - REEEMN2016F128148 =&
B > %% 17612,900,0000% 2 B8 A% 1 - 30
MRBEEMNEERIE &S
B FIEF B4 £404,500,000/8 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

28.

29.

Share Capital (continued)

The net proceeds raised from the Subscription were used
for expansion of the money lending businesses of the
Group, which include commercial and personal lending
as well as margin and IPO financing, and repayment of
outstanding loans.

The directors of the Company considered the net proceeds
raised have been utilised in accordance to the planned use
and there is no unutilised balance as at 30 September 2018
and 2017.

Share Options

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 20
September 2007 (which became effective on 27 September
2007 and was then amended on 13 August 2013) (“2007
Share Option Scheme”) has expired automatically in
September 2017 upon expiry of the 10-year period. All
issued share options under 2007 Share Option Scheme
were lapsed on 10 December 2015. Following the expiry
of the 2007 Share Option Scheme, no further share options
can be granted thereunder.

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option scheme
for the Company to provide incentives or rewards to
participants (including the Directors and eligible employees
of the Group), the shareholders of the Company passed
an ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26 January 2017 to approve the adoption
of a new share option scheme of the Company (“2017 Share
Option Scheme”). During the year, no share options were
granted under the 2007 Share Option Scheme and the 2017
Share Option Scheme.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

28.

29.

&N
HRBEEMESZMEREFHECH
RBRAKREZEFRED  BEBER
BAEFTARFRERNERARBRBE
REEREER -

KRBEERE  EEZHBHRIEFE
TR EEIB&ER - AR2018F &
20179 A30B W E A B FH 458 -

iR

RN A H2007F9 820 H 49 7 & I A
58 (E7R2007F9A27H £ 5 M &
K& 1% P 201348 A 13 & & =T) (2007
FHRETS D ETFHERERER
20179 B & E M ° FT B RIK2007F
BB B BT 2B RED R2015F
123108 k& o 20074 B8 I #E 51 21
fEmig  EREZAEE SR EE
o] B8 A% 4 o

BERARGBREFEIEERN2 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&
29. Share Options (continued)

A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is set out as
follows:

1.

Purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether

full-time or part time, including Non-executive Directors)
and such other eligible participants.

Shares available for issue under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme

(i) Total number of shares: 674,084,572 shares as
at 11 December 2018 (i.e. the date of this Annual
Report).

(ii) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents:
10% as at 11 December 2018.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme

(i) in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved by
the shareholders; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
Independent Non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event no
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

20. BB FE (&)
CONTEFERRIET 2 2 B HH M -

2017FEBRETEZEHN

EALBAESNS - BB LR
BzAER2EERNEE AR
BRNBERME I -

BERAL

RERZ2EERTES (TwER
HFB BRFATER) AR
HtaEmsmE o

2017 BRETEE T a7
i

(i) BB e: K2018F12H
11H (AFHRBH) A
674,084,572 %7 ©

(i) (EEZEITRMOBE DL : 72018
F12A118B A10% °

BE07EBREFBEIEREER

BHEZEHE 2R KERE

(i) BRIEEBIERERAE & HETE
BB+ — @ A BB B
TG Z21% K

(i AMEM+-@AABREETFEE
PERS B IFRNTESRES
ZENBBRANERES RS
DEITARD B90.1% KR 42 B EFE
335,000,000 JT » W4 7B K
UNEIL 3 i i

ARBEBRETROHE

BERERERLEMEEEESET
ZBEBBHHEAEMRRE - K
B A B E H B BEE0
& o

RATEBREZAESEBRE
W B SR

RIFEFERTRE SRHNES
%Egﬁﬁzﬁ °
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29.

30.

Share Options (continued)

7. (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(ii) The period within which payments or calls must

or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of

grant;

(iii) Period within which leans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

8. Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
offer date; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

9. The remaining life of the 2017 Share Option Scheme:
Approximately 8 years (expiring on 26 January 2027).

During the years ended 30 September 2017 and 2018,
no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or remained
outstanding under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and no
share-based payment expenses have been recognised in
both current and prior years.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Funds Scheme Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all
new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to
7% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length
of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme with maximum
cap at HK$1,500, of which contribution is matched by the
employee.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZFSZEBEFREAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&
30. Retirement Benefits Scheme (continued)

31.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2018, no forfeited
contributions arose upon employees leaving the ORSO
Scheme.

Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s loans and
borrowings arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

30. RKERIFT & (2

P aE IR 2 AR IRAR M AR TD AN 5% [E]
BBERBEIRAEE LR BARNZE
HEe 2R - MEBRBRENEZBIRT
AR BB R AETE] - RIAKEE
RTS8 = 02 WA FRAR o

MR2017%9A30H K2018F9A30H -
TEREERIBERKIIMEELEZ
W2 UK TR o

N.RMEFTHELENABNEE

TRAMLAEEBETHEENERRK
fERE  BRACIIFRSED - &
BERPEENABEAMEMRS RENA
AR ARRREREREANEENGZER
EMERTOERBELRDRTREN
BfE-

financing activities.

Bond
interest
Dividend payable
payable (included
(included in other
in other creditors) Short-term
creditors) &S bank
EMARE  FE(GFA  borrowings Bonds
(FF A E At H i FE {3 55 5 issued Total
FE A3 BRFK) AR IRITER CDBRITES et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET THET THET TET
At 1 October 2017 - 44,086 328,511 1,589,114 1,961,711
R2017F10H1H
Financing cash flows (251,434) (82,386) 131,714 1,188,602 986,496
BERSME
Interest on bonds issued - 122,783 - - 122,783
BEETERZHE
Dividend declared 251,434 - - - 251,434
EEIRKE
Other changes E fth & - (2,725) - 7,324 4,599
At 30 September 2018 - 81,758 460,225 2,785,040 3,327,023

R2018%9 A30H
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32. Related Party Transactions N.FAEALRES
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BMRZETBIRREMILH ATEFl
these financial statements, the Group had the following RGO AREBEHEEE A THETT
significant transactions with related parties: THEARRS :

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

(i) Corporate finance advisory services fee income from related

companies (notes 3 & 6) 2,320 1,730
FEELD Rz tERERBMREEWA (#i73Kk6)

(ii) Sharing of information system and administrative expenses paid

and payable to related companies (notes 2 & 6) 13,850
HAEERARSRRITRRGE M REN TREATZER
(H1:t246)
Management fee to a related company (notes 2 & 6) 288
GT—MRMEAAZERR (WE2R6)
(iii) Operating lease rentals expenses to related companies
(notes 3 & 6) 8,478
mMEERRIXNKEHERS (H7F3Kk6)
(iv) Commission and brokerage income from
A) T~ 31 W B & e 48 42 B LA
— a related company (notes 3 & 6) 57
—FE R E (HF3%k6)
— directors of the Company (notes 1 & 3) -
KRBIZESE (HaF1K£3)
(v) Interest income from directors of the Company (notes 1 & 3) -
AR REERRZFBWA (Ht143)
(vi) Placing and underwriting commission expenses to a director of
the Company and associates (notes 1 & 3) 460
MARA —BREEFRBMEAXINEE REHMAS L (HF1KX3)
(vii) Printing, advertising and promotion expenses to related
companies (notes 2 & 6) 1,162
mMEENRIXNER BEREEER (Hit2Kk6)
(viii) Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from
business of dealing in securities by
REFHEEEBZRNAREREER ZEMNER
— an associate (notes 2 & 4) — W& AR (B at2%4) 4,570
— directors of the Company (notes 1 & 2) -
KRBIZES (Wat1k2)
4,570
(ix) Rental and other deposits paid to related companies
(notes 5 & 6) 2,824

AEERRAXNEE REMRE (A 25K6)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

32. Related Party Transactions (continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes:

M

(3)

(4)

(6)

For the transactions with the director(s) of the Company,
the directors include a director who is one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust, a trust set up by Dr. Albert
Yeung who is the deemed controlling shareholder of the
Company.

These transactions are connected transactions exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.33 of
the Listing Rules.

These or some of these transactions are disclosable
continuing connected transactions (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company of which
details have been set out in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance
and Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report. The
directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The associate company of the Group is disclosed in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

This amount represents refundable rental deposits paid for
the continuing connected transactions as set out in item 1
of the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
under “Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts of Significance and Connected Transactions” of
the Director’s Report.

The related companies are controlled by the AY Trust.

(b) The compensation to directors and key management
personnel was disclosed in notes 9 and 10.

(1)

(6)

N.BEAEXZ (&
(%)
Wizt -

v

R ERARNAETHEITZRSM
5 EBEEBRE—REE - HABAY
Trust(ABE TR ZEL M5
BEHEARRARZIERKE) AL
BZmEAZ— o

KPR E W AR BISE14A 3316 - i X
SEBHMERS  ERRBETER -
NERBIBRRIEZIBTE °

0|

7

RERGRREXGBAREZA
TRESERERS (EXALLTR
BIE14AE) HBHNEZTEMRE
NIEENERRS  ZHHAENZ
BaREERS | T HEEERS ]
—fR - BEERRARAERE L
THRAF VAT ETRERE -

LW E R B RERA M B RRMET7
PR REEBERA -

ZEHENEZERE(EENER
RP RHRANIERREER
ST HERERS ] —HRER
PEBEREX SN2 REHE
e

ZEBE R RIBAY TrustPTZEH|

(b) EFERTEZEEABZBE N

IRIOM B EE -
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33. Operating Lease Commitments
At the end of each of the reporting periods, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office
premises and hired equipment which fall due as follows:

GENEE/ES
HK$’000
TET

13,860

Within one year —F &

In the second to fifth years inclusive
F_EERF (BREEMF)

23,822

For office premises and hired equipment, leases are mainly
negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of two
years.
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2018
Rental
premises

9,962

33. KEMHEAIRE
REBREMR - NEBEBRERAYE
LEAREBZ AR EHEEMBRK
SN &EBEERE 2 AYE - FADIHE
MzERET

2017

Rental
premises
HEWE

HK$’000

FET

Hired
equipment
HARE
HK$°000
FHET

Hired
equipment
HAR%E
HK$'000
THET

1,589 8,664 451
1,891 7,330 857
3,480 15,994 1,308

AMOMELREARBNE - BOTE
gEmgslE - HeHEE - FHEY
HIAME -
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34. Summary Financial Information of the
Company

Non-current asset JE R EN & &

Investment in a subsidiary A —EH B AR ZI&%E
Current assets B & &

Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y i & A &) 2 A

Subordinated loan due from a subsidiary

JEW—EHBARZEEER
Other assets H & &E

Bank balances and cash $R174& 8 NI &

4. KRR BERME

2018
HK$°000
TER

219,003

3,874,195

2,150,000

196

17,301

6,041,692

Current liabilities i 8 & 1&

Other creditors and accrued charges

HihENEBER L ESER
Tax liabilities B 18 & &

Bonds issued & 1T E%

81,640

6,076

953,479

1,041,195

Net current assets i 8 & & % E

5,000,497

Total assets less current liabilities

BEEAERRDAR

5,219,500

Non-current liabilities JER ) & (&

Bonds issued B 3 1T&E %

1,815,181

Net assets & & FE

3,404,319

Capital and reserves & & N &
Share capital P&

Reserves &

67,408

3,336,911

Total equity (Note) #5425 (K7 :F)

3,404,319

2017
HK$’000
TER

219,003

3,782,476

1,050,000

196
26,535

4,859,207

44,333

15,944

60,277
4,798,930

5,017,933

1,577,542

3,440,391

67,408
3,372,983

3,440,391
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34. Summary Financial Information of the 4. KN THMKERYE (&)
Company (continued)
Note: Bzt

Share Share Special Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total

L& BRAD =B Bl 8 R 88 g Al RBE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TER FTBx FBx FBx

At 1 October 2016 720164 1041H 61,279 2,786,238 101,953 130,472 3,079,942

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 135,240 135,240
FEHENR2ER BT

Dividend recognised as distribution - - - (179,305) (179,305)
BWRIED IR Z RS

Issue of shares 1T {5 6,129 398,385 - - 404,514

At 30 September 2017 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 86,407 3,440,391

R2017F9H30H

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 215,362 215,362
FERMRZE K RERE

Dividend recognised as distribution - - - (251,434) (251,434)
BRED IR ZRE

At 30 September 2018 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 50,335 3,404,319
7201859 H30H

Special reserve represents the difference between nominal FRlEEEAARIMBEARIEBITE®
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries of the IR 2 E{E B AR IR BN 20075F4 A2H
Company in issue and the nominal value of the shares ZEBEEHERKE -—HRE AR MmET
issued by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary ZBRDEER L ERE -

pursuant to a group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.
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For the year ended 30 September 2018 # %2018 98308 ILF &

35. Principal Subsidiaries 5. TEMBE LA
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30 20174 &201849H30H » " A A E
September 2017 and 2018 are as follows: ENBRARIZFBET :

Place of
incorporation/
operation

SMAL,

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital held by the
Company
ARARAZCBT
RAEELH

Issued and fully
paid capital
EETR
-

Name of subsidiary
Bt /8 2 ) & 78

Principal activities

EEME TEXH

Emperor Asset Management
Limited
REBEERBRAA

Emperor Capital Limited
HEREERAA

Emperor Capital (China) Limited
REFRPHAEBERAA

Emperor Finance Limited
EERBERRA

Emperor Futures Limited
HEBWEERAA

Emperor Prestige Credit Limited
(formerly known as Emperor
Shiying Finance Limited)

REZWEERRAA
(AIBEEHRMBERAR)

Emperor Securities Limited
HEFH(BB)ARAA

Emperor Wealth Management
Limited
HEMEERERAA

HTERAN (LG ARAR

RERBHAER)BERAR

RERBHXAORI) BERAR

Hong Kong
é\:

/

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
E\:

/

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong

1

People’s Republic
of China
hEARANE

People’s Republic
of China
mEARAME

People’s Republic
of China
mEARAME

HK$7,000,000
7,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 7

HK$100,000
100,000/ 7T

HK$2
28T

HK$50,000,000
50,000,0007% 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,0007% 7T

HK$900,000,000
900,000,000 7T

HK$6,500,000
6,500,000 7

HK$1,000,000
1,000,0007% T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$500,000
500,0007% 7T

# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise

30.9.2018
%

100

30.9.2017
%

100

100

100

100

100

N/A (Note 18)
TER(Hi18)

100

100

100

100

100

Provision of asset
management services

REEETERE

Provision of corporate
finance advisory services

RELXBEBRRG

Provision of promotion and
marketing services in the
PRC

RPERHEEERTS
R R

Provision of money lending
services
REEH RS

Provision of futures
brokerage services
REBELLERSE

Provision of money lending
services
REETRS

Provision of securities
brokerage services and
margin financing services

REZFEEBRBR
AFRBERSE

Provision of insurance and
other brokerage services
RERRREMELRY

Business development
in the PRC
RPBETERER

Business development
in the PRC
RPEETERRR

Business development
in the PRC

NPBETERRR

ZMBAR NI EBERE
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35.

36.

Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the executive directors, principally
affected the results or net assets of the Group.

To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
executive directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time during the
year.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
short-term bank borrowings, bonds issued as disclosed in
respective notes, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves as
set out on the consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and respective
notes. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
the prior year.

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with the share capital. In view of this, the Group manages
its overall capital structure through the drawdown and
repayment of bank borrowings, payment of dividends and
issue of share capital.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC. Under
the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain
their liquid capital in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with SFC on a monthly basis.

Another subsidiary of the Group is a member of the
Professional Insurance Brokers Association Limited and
is required to maintain a minimum net assets value of
HK$100,000 at all times.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k

35.
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SEHRERBNILEK
RAFERIAFER AR - &
EWMB AR EBEMREE 2EBE
% o

EXRERmERE
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KER)) - AEB 2 BREREE LFE
MR o

BEEEBERERKARRAIEREE
Bima BARE - BEN I AEEE
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37.Financial Instruments
Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets €@ & &

Loans and receivables (including bank balances and cash)

ERREEER(BRRITESRRERR)

Available-for-sale investment A ff H &£ 1% &

37.€®mIT A

TRMI R ZER

2018
HK$’000

2017
HK$’000

FTiERT FTER

10,752,408 9,494,224

Financial liabilities €@l & &

Amortised cost # #5 5k 4

5,169,869 4,187,288

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investment, other debtors and deposits,
accounts receivable, loans and advances, amount due
from an associate, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, accounts payable, short-term bank borrowings,
bonds issued and other creditors. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements
in foreign exchange rates relating to receivable from and
payable to foreign brokers and foreign currency deposits
with banks. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arises.

TREREEEFEREEK

AEEFESMITAREIIHEER
& HMERERRTR - BURERR -
ERRBER - EBR—EBERAZK
B RTEHREAS BEBERTRHE
o EERK - RHIRITER - BT
BEREMENER ZEESMIAEY
FERERSAZME HzEemT
BB R & e R EZE R R 2 K
REFNWNT - EREERENERZER
% DAREIRE R A B U7 N ERBUE & 5
i o

% 3
B
B A B e PR AN TR MR 4D
Z R RSN SRIT 7 B B 2 S R
THEBMBBERR - EEEER
SMERR - 3 4 R R E RS
PE R e
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37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37.¢€MIT A (&

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to
operate in local currencies as far as possible to minimise
currency risks. Most of the Group’s principal businesses
are conducted and recorded in Hong Kong dollar, the
functional currency of respective group entities, except for
certain receivables from and payable to foreign brokers and
bank deposits which are denominated in Australian dollar,
Canadian dollar, United States dollar, Renminbi, Japanese
Yen and Singapore dollar (see notes 21, 23 and 24 for
details). The executive directors of the Company considered
that the effect of currency risk is insignificant as the Group
has minimal exposure in Australian dollar, Renminbi,
Japanese Yen and Singapore dollar and there is the linked
exchange rate system of Hong Kong dollar against United
States dollar. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis in relation
to foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
management.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate accounts receivable, bank
balances, loans and advances, accounts payable and bank
borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relating to
the fluctuation of best lending rate arising from the Group’s
accounts receivable and loans and advances, market
savings interest rate arising from the Group’s bank balances
and accounts payable and Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate arising from Group’s short-term bank borrowings. The
Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed below.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
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37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37. €@ T A (Z&)
Financial risk management objectives and CREMEEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Cash flow interest rate risk (continued) B R EFEREE (&)
Financial instruments bearing variable interest rates in AEZEFIFME o/ TA
nature

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000

FiEx FET

Assets & E
Accounts receivable J& U BE & 5,312,777 4,777,691
Loans and advances B X & Z#5K 19,150 24,167

Bank balances $R 1745 % 285,344 515,985

Liabilities & &

Accounts payable & B8R X 1,491,919 1,659,520

Short-term bank borrowings 2 #3148 1T & 3% 460,225 328,511

Interest rate sensitivity ViES 89

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based TXZHREDTHRBERBME AR
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting FEERTFUETE  WERZRFREFR
period and it is assumed that the amount of the above FEERBESRBREF BERER
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period FTEEMEERSaFE —BHET
was in existence for the whole year and all other variables B o 50fE L 2L (20174F : 501E A 2h) &
were held constant throughout the respective year. A BIEEEERIHNE 2 EKER B
50 basis point (2017: 50 basis point) change represents RRB - RITHES - BRI E
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible IRITERE A RSB e B 8) 2 511 -

change in interest rates in respect of variable rate accounts
receivable, loans and advances, bank balances, accounts
payable and short-term bank borrowings.

2018 2017
Change in basis points Change in basis points
Huw %@

+50 -50 -50
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TERT TET TET

Increase (decrease) in profit after tax for the year 15,302 (15,302)

AN ERRB & I CRl )

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EEERL  BARFRFIESH BRI
unrepresentative of the market interest rate risk as the year TR FAREE 2 B - fmisHE
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year. Bk RE ST IEREKME -
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37.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
30 September 2018 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has a delegated team to compile the credit and
risk management policies, to approve credit limits and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the executive directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk by any single debtor
as the exposure is spread over a number of individual and
institutional customers, except for the loans and advances
and accounts receivable as disclosed in notes 20 and 21.

Details of analysis of the credit risk exposure of loans and
advances and accounts receivable are disclosed in notes
20 and 21.

Bank balances are placed in various authorised institutions
and the executive directors of the Company consider the
credit risk for such instruments is minimal.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flow, bank borrowings and bonds
issued are the sources of funds to finance the operations
of the Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject to floating rate and are renewable annually.
The Group’s liquidity risk management includes making
available standby banking facilities and diversifying the
funding sources. The Group regularly reviews the major
funding positions to ensure adequate financial resources
are available to meet their respective financial obligations.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$2,279
million (2017: HK$2,090 million).

The amounts disclosed in the table below are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.
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37.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity table

30 September 2018 2018495 30H
Accounts payable &R 5

Other creditors (excluding bonds interest)
Hitp BRERR(TEEESFFLR)

Bonds issued (including bonds interest)
ERTES (BREFNL)

Short-term bank borrowings (note)
5ERRITB R (A7 aL)

Repayable
on demand
or less than

3 months
RIRERY
=EAREER
HK$°000
THET

1,835,634

7,212

31,847

460,225

2,334,918

30 September 2017 2017594 30H

Repayable
on demand
or less than

3 months

ARERHY
=EAREER
HK$’000
TERT

37.€®mIT A

(&)

EREREERFERBGK (&)
mEBELmE (E)

Over 3
months to
1 year

=EANUE
ZE=rE
HK$’000
TR

1,031,470

1,031,470

Over 3
months to
1 year
=EBNUE
E—F
HK$°000
FET

Over 1 year
to 5 years
—Fp
Z2HF
HK$°000
FEx

1,979,632

1,979,632

Over 1 year
to 5 years
—FB
Z2HF
HK$’000
FExT

Total
et
HK$’000
FET

1,835,634

7,212

3,042,949

460,225

5,346,020

Total
F
HK$’000
FHE T

Accounts payable JEfTEER 2,214,913 - - 2,214,913
Other creditors (excluding bonds interest) 10,664 - - 10,664
Hitp BRHERR(TEEESFMLR)
Bonds issued (including bonds interest) 31,847 50,539 1,713,707 1,796,093
BEETER (BREESFTNER)
Short-term bank borrowings (note) 328,511 - - 328,511
REERITB R (A7 5L)

2,585,935 50,539 1,713,707 4,350,181

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 3R

137



__ J/N B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 &, 2201849308 It F /&

37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37.¢®MIT A (&

Financial risk management objectives and CREBEEEERBE(£)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) HEBELERE (&)

Liquidity table (continued) B EZH (E)

Note: Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are Wi HBEAREKEEERIZEBITER
included in the ‘repayable on demand or less than 3 months’ That AR ER D 47 2 [7BiR Bk ek = (@
time band in the maturity analysis. As at 30 September AREE]FHAER - KX2018F9A
2018, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of 308 ZERITERZRUBRAS
these bank borrowings amounted to HK$460,225,000 (2017: 48 58 /460,225,000 7T (20174 -
HK$328,511,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial 328,511,000 L) - KEREAEE 2
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that WA EERABBIT AT
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand FRIEREKRIANER - ESHEZ
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank ZRTERESREER D
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled FFEIE A HEE - B K &A
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, BB & 8% K A461,102,000%
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount 7t (20174 : 328,663,000/ 7T) °
to HK$461,102,000 (2017: HK$328,663,000).

Fair value ANF¥{E

Except as detailed in the following table, the executive BT RFMEN  RARRITEER

directors of the Company consider that the carrying BERGAMBRENIREEK AR

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded TRHEEAEHREBBECRABEBRKER
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements EEEE

approximate their fair values:

Carrying
amount Fair value

SREE NFE

HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET

As at 30 September 2018 74201859 H30H

Bond issued B #7175 2,785,040 2,781,215

As at 30 September 2017 A20175F9H30H

Bond issued & & 1TE % 1,589,114 1,594,969
This liabilities are classified under Level 2 in the fair value HEBBERATEBRANEEAE =
hierarchy. o
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37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37.¢€MIT A (&

Financial assets and financial liabilities
offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are
either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position; or

e not offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a
net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage
clients that are due to be settled on the same date and the
Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
HKSCC, dealers, brokers and brokerage clients that are not
to be settled on the same date, financial collateral including
cash and securities received by the Group, deposit placed
with HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the consolidated statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only
enforceable following an event of default.

TREERTHAGEEN

TR 2 BB BEX A RGINITEE
BEETHIBEUBZEARARZERE
ENTBREE WE:

s MAKEHAEMBARRKRANEHEZ
BHOE®MIA 3k

o HANNARMHEEMLENLERA M
BARREKAEFE 2 BUERTA -

REAGEEEFETREEAR QA
(IBEBHEE ] ML ABIERZ &%
BEE G AEBEE A AR @I
TN MEHRGERREESEEN
R NEHERE R ENEEEME - MA
SEERRFREELE -

SO - REBBEAR B IEF R BITE
Ao ABEGLEEBEEFEENER A H
BT AGE 2 R R EMRR - MAE
EAEBRFRELELE L ETEH -

BRI B ER T IAEE B H 2 48
BN B EINEEEE  RH5E
REARBREBEFP AL ERNERA
HYAEE2FE  eRERD (B
AREBRBERzRE NESF)  FHR
FREELRBRA 2R X I ERER
BB R NEEZRE - AR
EERASEBAEENENZELENS
1% 77 Al s8R BT
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37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37.€MIT A (&
Financial assets and financial liabilities CREERSHEBIES (&
offsetting (continued)
As at 30 September 2018 "20185F9H30H

Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts Related amounts not
financial  of financial set off in the statement of
assets set assets financial position
offinthe  presented I ERBISAMR N K AL N
Gross statement in the Z B RIE

amounts of of financial statement

recognised position  of financial

financial ~ REIEARR position

assets TREFHz REHEMRR
ERR BEER RAENZ Financial Collateral Net
TREE CREE €REE instruments received amount
e 2B 2R SHIE EBWEARR R
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FRT FET FET FET

Financial assets
CHEE
Amount due from clearing
house, dealers, brokers and
brokerage clients 5,683,090 (158,857) 5,524,233 (29,534) (5,206,461) 288,238
RUWEER  RH7 - BRAR
REEBEPZTIE

Deposit placed with clearing
house

FRREEMIES

140

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEEFR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &%k



__ J/N B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E I ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2018 & 2201849 A308 Lt F /&

37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37.¢®M TR (Z&)
Financial assets and financial liabilities tREEREREERNE (&)
offsetting (continued)
As at 30 September 2018 (continued) A2018%F9H30H (&)

Gross
amounts of Related amounts not
recognised Net amounts set off in the statement of
financial  of financial financial position
liabilities set liabilities b & 7 B 6 Ak 0 3% A9 4 86
offinthe  presented Z B RIE
Gross statement in the

amounts of of financial statement

recognised position  of financial

financial R EIEEARR position

liabilities ~FRAIEFE 2 REUBRR
EER BERRZE ®KAZ2 Financial Collateral NER
TRIAE SREE SEE[E instruments pledged amount
-t 2R ¢RI CWEAR BB
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FTER TEx FTHT FBT FBT

Financial liabilities

cHEAs

Amount due to clearing house,
brokers and brokerage clients 1,994,491 (158,857) 1,835,634 (29,534) 1,806,100

EREERN S ARKILER
BPZHE
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37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37.€MIT A (&
Financial assets and financial liabilities tREERESHAEEEE(E)
offsetting (continued)
As at 30 September 2017 720179 H30H

Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts Related amounts not
financial of financial set off in the statement of
assets set assets financial position
offinthe  presented IR BT K A K &5
Gross statement in the ZHEMIE
amounts of  of financial statement
recognised position  of financial
financial A B EAR R position
assets FWHEEZ REBMRR
ERR EHRA XTAEIZ Financial Collateral Net
eREE CREE SRMEE instruments received amount
2B 2B ZFE cRITHE CREHRR R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET TET TET

Financial assets
CRMEE
Amount due from clearing
house, dealers, brokers and
brokerage clients 5,365,625 (210,328) 5,155,297 (54,748)  (4,716,008) 384,541
EREEM 58 KRIEAK
REXBER 2FA

Deposit placed with clearing
house 13,309 - 13,309 - - 13,309
FRREEM RS
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37.Financial Instruments (continued) 37.¢MIT A (&)
Financial assets and financial liabilities tREENSREEESY (&)
offsetting (continued)
As at 30 September 2017 (continued) 201799 A30H (&)

Gross
amounts of Related amounts not
recognised Net amounts set off in the statement of
financial  of financial financial position
liabilities set liabilities b 8 A B 75 R 50 2% PO 3K 84
offinthe  presented ZEEMIE
Gross statement in the
amounts of  of financial statement
recognised position  of financial
financial R BIEAR R position
liabilites FAEHz HREBAMRR
B ERRA R®RAZNZ Financial Collateral Net
cHEE 5 EHEBE instruments pledged amount
2B 2 B EE ZEE cRITHE CREARAR R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET TERT TET TET TET

Financial liabilities

ctWER
Amount due to clearing house,
brokers and brokerage clients 2,425,241 (210,328) 2,214,913 (54,748) - 2,160,165
ERNEER  CRARKRLER
BFZHA
38. Reclassification 3.EFNMHE
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to ETHBRBFEEFHBUEEARFE
conform to the current year presentation. Z 25

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2H45E£EEERA T
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 3R

143



__ J/N B

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHME

Year ended 30 September
B Z9H30HLEFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEx TEx TERT TERT TET

RESULT #¥4&

Revenue YA 546,408 835,077 986,215 1,241,000 BEIEFERYA)
Profit before taxation [k £t Bl i F 269,127 519,634 634,264 793,655 660,048
Taxation #{18 (48,332) (89,383)  (108,643)  (134,470) BERLE:LE))
Profit for the year F € ji Fl| 220,795 430,251 525,621 659,185 549,195

As at 30 September
BZ9A30R L E

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER TER TERT TER

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER A&

Total assets B E 4 E 4.350,961 6,600,478 8,164,009 9,516,344 Wl rad -1/
Total liabilities & &4 %8 (2,780,827) (2,961,574) (3,914,293) (4,382,234) NGEkENAL))
Net assets F& &= 1,570,134 3,638,904 4,249,716 5,134,110 P ki T4l
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